T AGENDA
64@/1 PLAN COMMISSION

Wﬂﬁd Y Plan Commission: June 18, 2026 at 7:00 PM
' >

Village Hall 740 Hillgrove Avenue, Western Springs, IL 60558
A. Call to Order

B. Approval of Minutes
1. October 28, 2025
2. March 19, 2026
C.  Public Comment
D. Considerations
E. Other Business
1. Comprehensive Plan Update Workshop

F. Adjournment

Individuals with disabilities who plan to attend / participate in this meeting and who require accommodations
to allow them to observe and participate, or who have questions regarding accessibility of the meeting or
facilities, please email accommodations@wsprings.com or contact Jill 1zzo at 708-246-1800, extension 127.

wsprings.com &
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Village of Western Springs Plan Commission Meeting
10/28/2025

VILLAGE OF WESTERN SPRINGS, ILLINOIS
PLAN COMMISSION MEETING
October 28, 2025 -- 7:00 P.M.

REPORT OF PROCEEDINGS taken at the Western
Springs Village Hall, 740 Hillgrove Avenue, Western
Springs, lllinoils, reported by Hailey M. Schoot, an
I1linois Certified Shorthand Reporter, License
Number 084-004897.

PRESENT :

PETER GLIMCO, Chalrman
MICHELE JOHANN, Member
PATRICK TURNER, Member
RYAN DEPROSPERIS, Member
PETER HANSON, Member
STEVE WINEGAR, Member

ALSO PRESENT:

HEATHER VALONE, Director of Community Development
KELSEY FAWELL, Senior Planner

ANNE SKRODZzZKI, Village Attorney

ELLEN BAER, Village Manager

HEIDI RUDOLPH, Village President

www . ChimnrakCourtReporting.com
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Village of Western Springs Plan Commission Meeting
10/28/2025

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I would call to order the
October 28th meeting of the Plan Commission. On
the agenda tonight we have -- 1 don"t have the
agenda in front of me, but me have approval of the
minutes from last meeting.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Oh, 1"m going to roll call
just really quick.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Okay. We"re going to --
okay. We"ll do roll call first.

DIRECTOR VALONE: All right. Brumbaugh is
absent.

DeSprosperis?

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: Here.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Hanson?

COMMISSIONER HANSON: Here.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Johann?

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Here.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Turner?

COMMISSIONER TURNER: Here.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Winegar?

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Here.

DIRECTOR VALONE: And Chairman Glimco?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Here.

DIRECTOR VALONE: We have a quorum.

www . ChimnrakCourtReporting.com
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10/28/2025

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Excellent. Tonight we are
going to go through the minutes from last meeting,
we"re going to open i1t to public comment for
anything other than the matter that we will
consider tonight, which i1s the public hearing on
PC 2025-04, The Village of Western Springs
Community Development Department Text Amendments,
we" 1l move on to other business and then we will
adjourn.

With that 1 would open i1t up to a
motion for an approval of the October 6th, 2025
minutes.

COMMISSIONER TURNER: Motion to approve.

COMMISSIONER HANSON: Second.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All those i1in favor?

(Chorus of ayes.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Moving on to public comment.

IT anyone from the public wishes to
make a comment about anything other than the matter
under consideration tonight, now would be the time.

Hearing none, I would move on to the
matter under consideration tonight.

Could 1 get a motion to open up the

public hearing on PC 2025-04 The Village of Western

www . ChimnrakCourtReporting.com
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Springs Community Development Department Text
Amendments?

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Motion to open.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: |Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER HANSON: Second.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All in favor?

(Chorus of ayes.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I would assume, at this
point, we would hear from Staff.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yes, but first off --

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Can 1 just state for the
record the hearing that we"re here before tonight,
I have received the affidavit of notice, so we are
here for a public hearing regarding text amendments
to the Village®s Development Control Ordinance and
those have been publicized in all of the ways
required by local and state law.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Thank you, Anne.

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Thanks.

DIRECTOR VALONE: All right. Well 1711 get
started out by also saying 1 want to thank the Plan
Commission for their commitment over the last
couple of years. 1 know we have had a lot of cases

come through in the last almost three years and you
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guys have been really busy and you"re a wonderful
group of volunteers and | just want to say thank
you. | know having a double meeting this month,
too, was a lot, so 1| just -- on behalf of myself
and Kelsey and, 1 think, Staff, we just want to say
thank you for your commitment and we appreciate you
guys beilng here with us tonight and chatting about
text amendments.

So Kelsey 1s going to start. She 1i1s
going to go through basically kind of a similar
overview as your memo, we"re going to -- we"ll stop
along the way with each one. So we"ll kind of go
through each topic, stop along the way for each
one, we"ll get a recommendation that way. It is
very possible -- there®s a lot of text amendments
on here. We haven®"t done text amendments In a
while and there®s some things on here that i1t"s
very possible that we may need to go to a second
meeting. If we do, that"s fine. 1 think we"ll
also talk at the end of the meeting, too, about
kind of maybe some future meetings related to the
Plan Commission and kind of just what we look like
going into the new year.

So Kelsey i1s going to kick us off and

www . ChimnrakCourtReporting.com
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kind of chat about a few of out text amendments.

MS. DEN BESTEN: 1I1"m sorry. May 1 ask a
question? Earlier you said public comment was for
things other than this.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Correct.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Are you allowing for public
comment during this?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: We will.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Okay.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yeah. After we hear from
the staff and after the commissions kind of talk
about each issue we"ll open 1t up for public
comment.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: And maybe that®"s a good
point, ma“am. Maybe we should swear people 1In
collectively now.

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Sure. |1 can do that.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Anyone who thinks they might
be talking tonight and who does want to ask a
question, why don®"t you stand up now.

Anne, do you want to swear them in.

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: 1 can do that.

(Members of the public sworn.)

www . ChimnrakCourtReporting.com
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CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Thank you, Anne.

MS. FAWELL: All right.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Kelsey, no pressure, but we
can get this done tonight.

MS. FAWELL: Yes. Well, let"s aim high, shall
we?

Okay. So as Heather stated, this is
an application by the Community Development
Department. We are proposing a myriad of code
amendments to the Development Control Ordinance
related to general development, residential,
commercial, and mixed use regulations.

Our current DCO was adopted in 1993.
We amended i1t regularly since that date kind of
here and there for specific instances, but this
would be one of the more extensive overhauls iIn
recent years.

Okay. So first things first, we"ll
talk about the residential amendments that are
proposed. So currently our code does not really
have anything for minor variations or minor
administrative adjustments is what we"re referring
to 1t as. So this i1s a process that we are

proposing can be done administratively for minor
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variations, which I will go through which specific
types of variations that would be for. This --
going through this process would not mean that the
community development director gets final say so,
it would require that notification go to
neighboring property owners within 150 feet to give
them the chance to comment on the application like
they would if 1t were a standard variation going
through the Board of Zoning Appeals.

So, again, this is proposed for just
minor variations. For replacement of existing
detached garages that are too close to the property
line, they can be replaced within the existing
location, provided they"re not closer than one foot
to the lot line. Allowing porches to encroach six
foot into the required front yard as opposed to the
code”s maximum of five feet currently, and then
also allowing for 100 square foot adjustments to
building coverage and gross floor area.

These situations are something that
Staff kind of sees regularly. We -- 1t"s not
uncommon for us to see garages that an applicant or
a homeowner i1s trying to replace and they"re too

close to the lot lines. This 1s also something
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that 1s similar to our neighbors. We looked at
communities like La Grange that has a very similar
process. So this would be in line with some of the
variations that we have granted, this ordinance, so
trying to streamline this for residents.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: And why don"t we break these
down and get through them, like make a
recommendation on this i1tem right now, open it up
to public comment, i1If that works?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah, that"s exactly --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Were you done with your
presentation?

MS. FAWELL: For this one, yes.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Commissioners, do you have
any questions about this particular one?

DIRECTOR VALONE: And just to clarify really
quick. So the replacement of the garages with
setbacks that are less than required feet would
only be 1f they"re existing garages. It would not
allow somebody who i1s already code compliant to
then not be code compliant.

We have had instances where, as
Kelsey mentioned, that somebody has applied to

replace their garage, but then when they were
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10
actually out on the field doing 1t, they put it

right back where i1t was supposed to be and then
they either had to tear them up or come through the
variation process.

So, again, the garages would only be
iIT they were existing. It wouldn®t allow somebody
who didn"t have the situation before to then have
It now.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yeah. 1 guess, you know, my
only question -- 1 think this is great and 1 think
making things that typically get approved
streamlined for our residents i1s efficient, we
should be doing that. |1 have no problems. 1 guess
what happens 1f you deny i1t and the resident
doesn"t like 1t? |Is there a due process or a
hearing then or do they just have to go back
through the normal channels?

DIRECTOR VALONE: They would just be able to
go through the Zoning Board of Appeals process.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Okay.-

DIRECTOR VALONE: And our Zoning Board of
Appeals i1s the final say on variations. So that
would -- there wouldn®"t be, like, another

intermediate step for them, they would go straight
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11
to that process.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Great.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: 1 have a questions.

So, hypothetically, you have a garage
that 1s three feet from the property line and the
ordinance 1s five feet. Are you allowed to
completely tear that garage down, including the
foundation and put an entirely new structure 1in
that space that your old one occupied?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yeah.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: 1Is that clear in the
way the ordinance is written? Okay. Are you
allowed to make 1t taller?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Mm-hmm.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Increase the volume?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Not above what the code
allows, which 1s a maximum of 14 to the mean point
of the hip or the gable roof, but 1t would allow
you, If you were building a taller garage, to meet
requirements.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: So within the current
ordinance volume --

DIRECTOR VALONE: Correct.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: -- would stay the same?

www . ChimnrakCourtReporting.com
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Okay. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Any other questions,
Commissioners?

Is there anyone from the public that

wanted to talk about this particular text change?

MS. DEN BESTEN: Yes. The way i1t"s —-

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Would you do me a favor?

MS. DEN BESTEN: I"m sorry.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Would you just state --

MS. DEN BESTEN: Yeah. 1It"s Lisa -- Lisa —-

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: -- your name and spell your
last name for the record?

MS. DEN BESTEN: 1It"s capital D-e-n
B-e-s-t-e-n. First name Lisa. First name Lisa.

5305 Commonwealth.

12

I have been in your shoes, late 1990s

in the Plan Commission and then 1 was on the
Village Board after that, so | know your pain if
you"re having two meetings In one month.

Anyway, so I am familiar with the
DCO, and maybe there have been some modifications
since then, 1"m sure, but, in any case, the garage
thing, just —-- it wasn"t clear the way 1t was in

what 1 read. Okay? And I looked for garage
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references in the DCO and 1 didn"t come up with a
whole lot. So what 1"m wondering about If 1t needs
to be clarified 1T the garage i1s currently less
than five feet from the property line, can they go
to one foot from the property line or is it to
whatever the existing garage i1s at?

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1t would be the existing.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Okay. Because, to me, that
didn"t seem very clear. It just sounded like --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yeah. If you look -- are
you looking at Paragraph A under -- on page 191,
245, 1t says, ''the required setback for detached
garage. An administrative variation to allow an
existing detached garage accessory to a single
family detached dwelling to be renovated or
replaced in 1t"s existing location."

MS. DEN BESTEN: Okay.-

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: '"No closer than one foot" i1t

goes on to say.-

MS. DEN BESTEN: Okay. So 1 was thinking
about a scenario where, let"s say, two next door
neighbors both have nonconforming, so then it
sounds like, in that scenario, i1t"s highly unlikely

they would both be one foot away, because that
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would only be two feet between the two garages,
SO --

DIRECTOR VALONE: Well, and additionally, too
it would not allow them to encroach on their
neighbors property, like, from an air perspective
either. So, hypothetically, 1T they were putting
In something that was one foot from the garage and
they were going to include eaves, they would likely
have to move the property because then that would
be encroaching on the air rights of their
neighbors. So 1t would not allow any sort of new
encroachment on to a neighboring property. In that
case they would still have to likely move i1t back,
but it would still maybe then allow them to only be
shifting 1t a few feet where opposed to the
existing garage was. We have a lot of these
garages -- detached garages that are being replaced
now that don"t really have eaves or gutters, but
they"re becoming very attractive in having eaves
and gutters and things and so, even iIn that case,
they would still have to shift over, but i1t may not
necessarily mean they have to go the full five
feet, right, 1t their garage has been sitting,

let"s say, two and a half feet from the property

www . ChimnrakCourtReporting.com
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15
line before.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Okay. Now, what 1f 1t 1is,
for example, one foot or even two feet and the
neighbor wants to the up a fence, so there would be
a fence, and then the garage would be one foot
away, and then who would take care of that, you
know what 1 mean? You wouldn"t be able to get in
there to clean up and there would be leaves
collecting there and garbage and who knows what in
that one foot space. | mean, how do you handle a
possibility of that?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Sure. | mean, we have
existing garages in town that are, in fact, less
than -- actually less than one foot from the
property, so we do have this existing condition.
Again, the process would allow the neighbor to
object. So i1f the neighbor have a reasonable
objection to something, say the drainage or a
concern like that, that would be something that
would then stop the process. Generally, though,
you know, what we"re seeing a lot of people are
putting kind of -- when they don®"t have a lot of
area they"re putting kind of low maintenance things

Iin that area, so things that don"t necessarily need

www . ChimnrakCourtReporting.com
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to be trimmed all the time. We"re also seeing,

occasionally, the use of stone, which does count to
our lot coverage, but we are seeing people also do
that.

So, again, neighbors would be allowed
to object and i1f they had a reasonable objection,
right, to the actual issue, then that would be
something that could stop a process, which iIs the
same of a BZA hearing as well.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Okay. |If you guys are
comfortable with 1t. Okay.

MS. FAWELL: And also I want to point out that
this would not negate i1t going through the typical
building permit process, so it would be reviewed by
engineering and our building code officials, so if
there 1s a situation where the residential code
requires some additional improvements due to how
close 1t 1s to the property line, that will be
considered as part of --

MS. DEN BESTEN: Yeah, I saw that. Yeah.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: 1 have another
question. Going back to eaves and gutters, your
measurement of where the current garage sits is to

the wall?
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17
CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yes.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: So i1s there any
provision on here -- and since we"re allowing up to
one foot i1f they design a new structure, with eaves
and gutters, clearly that needs to stay within
their property line, but La Grange has a very
detailed eave restriction on detached garages. |
can"t remember the details because i1t has been a
little while, but they did address that issue. So
do we want to allow new -- a new design to have
eaves that could -- and including the gutters --
potentially be right on the property line or not?

DIRECTOR VALONE: So, again, in that situation
they can®"t encroach on to their neighbors property.
Additionally, 1f they have an existing garage and
their design dictates that they would need to then
be further away from the line, again, that would be
something that would come through during permitting
process. When somebody were to submit an
application, for example, we would be reviewing it
as a burlding permit process, right? And so if
their design dictated it would have to be further
away, 1t would have to be further away then. They

wouldn"t be able to, you know, cause any sort of
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nuisance to the neighbor. And, again, the neighbor

would have the ability to be notified, get provided
a copy of the plans and make their request.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Let me ask i1t a different
way, Steve"s question, because you"re going to be
the director of community development, presumably,
that will hear this request.

Is 1t likely that you®"re going to
grant a request where an eave i1s going to be at the
property line of 1ts neighbor or would you have
reservations about doing so?

DIRECTOR VALONE: So i1t would also depend a
little bit on engineering as well, too. For
example, 1T there was a reason that additional
water being over there would be an i1ssue, that
would be something we would have to look at. We
would have to look at the gutters as well, so
It's -- the --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I think 1t would be site
specific.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 think we"re getting a
little bit pigeonholed on the one foot aspect.
What we"re basically saying is that, you know,

we"re allowing something that"s less than fTive
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19
because we have existing garages that are near the

property line. In the case of the eaves, too,
again, like 1f they were to generate a nuisance to
part of the neighbor or violate a different part of
our building code or engineering code, then that
would also impact their design and they would have
to shift it. But, again, 1t wouldn®"t necessarily
mean they have to go the full five feet, right, it
might be shifting them, you know, a foot over for
the gutter and eave overhang.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: So where I was leading
i1Is | was suggesting that maybe we make that one
existing building setback include any eaves and
gutters.

DIRECTOR VALONE: We could do that.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: So, in other words,
like start with gutter line, figure out
architecturally what they want to see and maybe the
walls would have to move further In to accommodate
that design and still allow for at least one foot
between the edge of the gutter and the property
line.

DIRECTOR VALONE: We"ll work up some language

on that. || think our building official would be
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good to help us working on that just because |

wouldn®"t -- 1 also wouldn"t want 1t to be -- if for
some reason someone had a really ornate -- let"s
say somebody had an existing eave, like an 18-inch
eave, right, 1 wouldn"t want them to think that
that would then be where they could further place
that structure, right, because that would be then
much closer to the property line but still meeting
the -- and they ended up going with someone that
didn"t have eaves or gutters, let"s say, for
example. So 1 wouldn®"t want somebody to be able to
exploit that either, but 1 do think It Is a good
point --

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Having been an
architect in this town for a long time, 1 know
exactly how -- you know, you have to manipulate
your design to accommodate the code restrictions,
so i1t wouldn®"t be unreasonable to ask the designer
to go no closer than arbitrarily one foot to the
property line with a new design.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah. |1 think we could
update the language just to say the replacement of
garage setbacks including wall foundation and eave

and gutter.
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COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: And/or.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah. Okay.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Yeah.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: That works for me.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Anything else on the other
sections? The porch or the square footage of
building coverage or the adjusted gross square --
excuse me -- gross fTloor area.

Generally what we"re trying to get at
there 1s we have a lot of our older homes are
looking to add like a mud room or a small addition
and they“"re already likely at our maximums and they
would have to make significant alterations to an
existing building to add a small addition. Also,
we get a lot of requests for six foot porches as
opposed to five. Five 1s hard to put furniture on,
six gives you a little bit more leeway to be able
to make that a more functional front porch.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Should we add some
verbiage about you only get one shot at 100 square
feet?

DIRECTOR VALONE: We could. We could, yes.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Because 1 can see

somebody taking their 100 feet, selling the house,
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next owner wants to add another00 feet.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Well, so --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: They can only go 100 over --

DIRECTOR VALONE: Right. 100 over the
calculation, right. So unless they iIncrease the
lot size.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I don*"t think you need to
change that.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Okay.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 apologize. 1 thought you
were saying they could either only get building
coverage or only get gross floor area.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Total of 100 beyond what"s
allowed by code right now.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Right. 1 need to read
all the words.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1t i1s long, which 1s why,
like I mentioned, if we —-

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: So I"m going to pause here
and ask for a vote on this issue 1T there's a
motion.

Oh, I™"m sorry.

MS. DEN BESTEN: 1I"m sorry. On the second
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piece that Heather just brought up, 1T I may?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yeah. Please.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Does this include the part
about the first floor or second floor additions
with nonconforming --

DIRECTOR VALONE: Not there yet.

MS. FAWELL: No, this i1s a different section.

MS. DEN BESTEN: That"s separate? Okay. All
right then. Sorry.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I would like to entertain a
motion 1T there"s anyone so inclined.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So i1t would be a motion to
make some modification to include eave and gutter
and wall and there"s an "or' i1n there to the garage
setbacks.

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Motion to approve.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: 1 second.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All those i1in favor?

(Chorus of ayes.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Do you want me to do a roll
call vote?

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Was there anyone opposed?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: No.
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ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: 1 thought 1 saw and heard

everyone there, but just for the record.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yes.

MS. FAWELL: Okay. Moving on to our next
residential amendment. So this is related to
non-conforming structures. So right now within our
code there®s something called nonconformities. It
relates to use and also building and structure
where i1t essentially i1s referring to structures and
buildings that are not iIn compliance with the
zoning code, but may have been constructed prior to
the zoning codes development. So we have a number
of -- as Heather stated -- old homes i1n town that
were constructed long before our current DCO
regulations and --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Kelsey, can you take it to a
page number?

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1711 get you to a page
number when she"s --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Okay. 1"m sorry.

MS. FAWELL: No worries.

And so as it relates right now in our
code where a property has a non-conforming wall

that encroaches 1Into a corner yard, interior yard
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or rear yard, any new encroachment, even if 1It"s in

line with what"s existing -- and 11l pull up a
graphic that will help clarify -- iIs required to go
through the Board of Zoning Appeals process because
It 1s a new encroachment into the yard that is
exiting and requires an approval of a variation.

So what Staff is recommending is that
vertical and horizontal extensions, when they are
constructed in line with a non-conforming wall for
the interior side, corner side, or rear yard, that
that 1s something that just can be approved via
Staff through the building permit process.

So here 1s an example on the screen.
This 1s an existing home in blue. That red line
that just appeared is the property®s required 15
foot corner side yard. As you can see, the home is
within the corner side yard as i1t exists. |IT we
were to allow an addition to the home based off our
current code requirement, they would have to comply
with the required corner side yard and put that
addition in outside the corner side yard, so It"s
not going to be in line with the house. What we
are proposing to amend the code i1s that this could

be granted an extension of that non-conforming wall
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as long as i1t"s in line with what"s existing and

doesn"t encroach further to the property line that
Is existing. This would not apply for front yards.
This would only apply for interior side yards,
corner side yards and rear yards. If it 1s a front
yard extension it would require -- 1t would go
through the BZA process for a variation.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So in your red lines you"re
going to go to the second to last page. So we"re
looking at 10-93. It"s right before Appendix B
gross floor area.

MS. FAWELL: And this is --

DIRECTOR VALONE: Let"s pause and make sure
they get there.

COMMISSIONER HANSON: Page 219?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yes, | believe 1t"s 219.
We"re going all the way back.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Saying it another way,
you"re grandfathering in existing setback
encroachments in the rear and side yards?

MS. FAWELL: Yes. So the property is already
technically grandfathered in, but 1t would be
allowing a new addition to follow In line with

that.
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CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: That i1s not unusual.

MS. FAWELL: Yes. That is probably one of our

more common variation requests is when people are
trying to add an addition that is extending their
side wall and into the side yard.

DIRECTOR VALONE: We would also propose it

would be first floor and then second floor as well.

So this --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Commissioners, any
questions? | have no questions. This Is pretty
straightforward. Does anyone -- this is the one
you wanted to comment on, 1 believe?

MS. DEN BESTEN: Yes. Thank you. 1 guess I
was just thinking about, okay, the neighbor on the
other side of the corner side yard, so when they

put the addition in, depending on sunlight and all

and trees and what not, couldn®t that significantly

impede the neighbor®s, you know -- what"s the word
I want -- you know, well available sunlight, and
especially 1f 1t"s closer?

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 mean, there could be
impacts, but this does not allow them to deviate
from the rear setback, so they"re likely still set

at least 20 to -- 25 to 30 feet away from that
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neighbor. So 1t"s probably -- I mean, there is

Iimpacts, right, i1t does have closer, but 1 think
the actual amount of that impact is probably less
given how far of a setback away they would be.
This 1s one, too, that we had

considered could also be just an administrative
adjustment process iIf there were concerns about,
you know, situations somewhat like this i1f they
were very close. We have the benefit in kind of
looking at some of out aerial 1magery in our
building footprints the County produces for us,
which have error iIn them, but, you know, are the
best data we can get our hands on. We don"t
generally have a lot of homes that have an issue
with the rear setback. So we"re not necessarily
seeing that so much, but we have a lot of older
home that the lots got set down after they did or
we made changes to them after the fact, so -- or we
had people who buy neighboring lots and want to do
additions on the neighboring homes that were built
on 50 wide lots, but now are held to a ten-foot
setback. So...

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: So having to have had

to deal with this, small setbacks like six, eight
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inches, maybe a foot, are a real pain to design
around when you encroach, you know, inches over,
but I"m not sure | want to give them carte blanche
for more significant setbacks. So 1f you have a
house that"s within, say, three feet of the
property line, I"m not really wild about extending
that nonconformity or increasing that
nonconformity, | guess, with an addition. 1 do
think this (inaudible) owners for the neighbors.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So, again, we could switch
It to be an administrative adjustment so that we
would allow it, it just would need to come through
the process where the direct neighbors would have a
chance to provide discussion.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Do you have any homes that
have a three foot setback?

DIRECTOR VALONE: We more ran into this when
i1It"s more along the lines of Inches. 1 can"t say
for certain because the data that we can get that
would actually give us iInterior side yards 1is
just -- there®"s too much error related to that, but
In reviewing permits since | have been here and
since Kelsey has been here, it typically is more

along the lines of a foot. It"s not necessarily
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that we"re seeing so many feet under 1t. We"re

more seeing the inches.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: Well, as i1t stands
now, 1T somebody wants to permit for an addition
and they already i1n a non-conforming zone and they
want to permit into this non-conforming zone, 1is
that 150 foot rule where the neighbors are
notified, does that apply?

MS. FAWELL: It goes through the variation
process.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: Right.

MS. FAWELL: So -- and that would be a 250
foot notice requirement because 1t"s a public
hearing.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: So the neighbors
would know about this in the event that someone
would extend something on to a non-conforming --

DIRECTOR VALONE: Right. Currently, yeah,
they would have to go through the BZA process. We
have no other process.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: 1 haven™t read the DOC
in a while. Wasn®"t there a limitation In the
variance request of up to ten percent nonconforming

or something along those lines, one of the seven
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things they have to meet?

DIRECTOR VALONE: There are limitations on
some of the variations that are -- BZA are
permitted to give, but 1T somebody wanted something
greater than that, they could always seek that from
the Village. Going through the BZA just like you
would see something from a --

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: So you"re basically
making that ten percent a staff decision, but
beyond that 1 think 1 want them to go through the
variance process.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Okay. We could easily make
that update that it would be an administrative
adjustment of up to ten percent of the required
interior -- interior or corner side yard and then
they would get notice to the neighbors -- the
direct neighbors, right, 150 feet i1s probably about
three lots, kind of a three lot buffer, right?
Would that be --

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Yeah, if 1t make it
easier for them to get -- not have to go through
the variance process to get that decision.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Right. 1t"s much cheaper

and quicker.
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COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: And faster.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Okay. So we will make a
note to go back and add it to the administrative
adjustment process. If we could get -- 1T you want
to -- 1f you want to make a -- the recommendation
that you would recommend it being rolled into the
administrative adjustment process as discussed with
the ten percent, then we can make those changes.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Steve has got this motion.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Uh...

DIRECTOR VALONE: So moved. So moved.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Move to recommend.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: So moved.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Can I get a second?

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: Second.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All those iIn favor --

DIRECTOR VALONE: Sorry. Was 1t --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Who seconded it?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Ryan did?

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: Yeah.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All those i1n favor?

(Chorus of ayes.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Opposed?

(No response.)
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ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Thanks. Thank you.

DIRECTOR VALONE: All right. Give Kelsey just
a second. She i1s making some notes on her draft so
that we can go back and make those.

MS. FAWELL: Okay. So more with our
residential, our last kind of part of residential.

We did propose some minor amendments
to the accessory use table. Those are in your
packet related to rear yard accessory -- Or rear
yard air conditioning units and fireplace
allowances. So those are standard and those are
more kind of came about with our building code
official about what he reviews.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So 10-4, that"s going to be
Iin the start of your red lines.

MS. FAWELL: And then Staff has been
approached -- 1 did not mean to say it was the last
one.

DIRECTOR VALONE: We have a lot of them.

MS. FAWELL: We have a lot.

So we also are proposing some
regulations related to beekeeping on single-family
residential properties within the R1 and R2

district.
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CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Before we move on to

beekeeping, do you want us to make a recommendation
on the last one? It"s very minor.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Sure. So essentially what
you"re looking at in the start, so that"s table
10-4 that®"s marked up. There are a lot of -- so
you"re going to be heading to --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Page 191, 1 think.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 believe 191, yes. |1
apologize. For some reason on the digital one i1t"s
not giving me the number right now, but, yeah, so a
number of those are just clean up items. So just
as an example, the fTirst one that"s listed there is
about air conditioners. We have a whole other
section below 1t that actually really regulates air
conditioners, but you don®"t know i1t, so we"re
trying to update i1t to make sure that you have
those cross references. Also, there has been just
some minor changes i1n construction that we"re
making recommendations to, like, for example, the
chimneys, for example, like no one has a 12 --
18-1nch chimney anymore. They"re having us direct
that fireboxes are at least, you know, 24 inches,

we don"t really have fire escapes so much anymore
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and when we have those i1t"s also related to the

fire code and so we have requirements based on
that. So there are just some minor things within
here to kind of clean up a few i1tems that are just
confusing. These are just really clarification
1tems.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I don"t think these are
controversial.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Okay.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I would entertain a motion.

MS. DEN BESTEN: May 17?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Oh, go ahead.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Sorry.

The ailr conditioning one, 1f somebody
has an air conditioner, condenser, compressor 1in
their side yard or corner side yard, what happens?

DIRECTOR VALONE: So the 10-4(G) that we"re
trying to add, that actually goes down to our
entire section on air conditioning units. So under
the current code i1f you have an existing air
conditioner in the side yard that does not meet the
side yard requirement and you can prove It was
there prior to when they changed the code related

to that, you can keep i1t, you got to screen it,
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though. 1In theory, you could have an air

conditioner on the side of your house if you had
extra area outside of your setback. We have that
frequently, actually, where people will build in a
couple extra feet on the side to be able to tuck
those 1n or they"ll build a little nook. So i1t is
possible they could and so actually --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: This i1s the only one that
gets 1Into the setback.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Right. So this i1s actually
precisely why we want to reference the lower code
section because 1t"s far removed from It and we get
people all the time going I know we can do this, I
swear | saw this somewhere, and you®re going, like,
six pages down from this table, so that®"s why we"re
trying to just kind of put that reference in so
that people can find their way to whatever
requirements are.

MS. DEN BESTEN: That"s excellent. Yeah.
Good. Yeah. Okay. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: |Is there a motion to clean
up Section 10.4 relating to air conditioners and
Tireplaces?

COMMISSIONER TURNER: So moved.
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CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Second?

COMMISSIONER HANSON: Second.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: AIll those in favor opposed?

(Chorus of ayes.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Opposed?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Thank you.

DIRECTOR VALONE: All right. Kelsey i1s going
to move on to beekeeping, and we actually -- 1
believe we have somebody in the audience here who
IS Interested in speaking on this one.

MS. FAWELL: So Staff has been approached
within the past year from a resident, Tom, about
beekeeping. Tom provided public comment that was
included 1n your packet. Tom is also here iIf he
would like to speak, but as it stands the Village
does not allow residential beekeeping. So as part
of this application we did some research on
surrounding communities to find what was in line.
Some of our neighbors are a little bit more extreme
in their beekeeping like Clarendon Hills where you
can do 1t wherever, anywhere, which i1s interesting,
but this i1s only proposed for single family --

detached single family. There are proposed setback
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requirements, requirements related to fencing and

flyway In case the bees escape, maximum quantity of
colony/hives, registration with the state and
building permit process.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So i1t"s at the front of your
red lines. It"s just below the --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Page 194, 1 believe.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yes.

So we kind of modeled this a cusp 3.
A little bit from Clarendon Hills, a little bit
from Elmhurst, a little bit from Lisle, and a
little bit from -- who am 1 forgetting? Skokie?

MS. FAWELL: Skokie.
DIRECTOR VALONE: Skokie.

So -- we allow chickens, and so,
again, we have had some iInterest in folks keeping
bees. This 1s just a proposal out of some
interest. Happy to, you know, chat a little bit
more about 1t. 1 have not worked for a community
that has kept bees, but, like I said, we reached
out to our peers and kind of chatted with them
about their process. Their process i1s very similar
to our chicken keeping where they get a permit to

have their hive and then they renew i1t every year.
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This does require some additional monitoring and

registration with the state and then, of course,
there"s the safety features Kelsey mentioned about
the hives.

So thoughts on this one? 1 know this
one 1s -- | mean, this one is very different from
our other ones, right? This 1s -- this would be a
change 1In our code.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Has there been any noise
generated by the chickens that you know of?

DIRECTOR VALONE: You know, 1 have worked here
for three years and | have yet to receive a chicken
complaint.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Oh, good.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 did hear, at one point,
one was loose, but it was caught very quickly, but
I - 1 don"t know. Actually, our former Village --
Deputy Village clerk notified us that there was a
loose chicken, but by the time we got there it had
gone home, it had been collected.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I would open it up to
commissioner questions. I°"m not sure 1 even know
what to ask.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Any thoughts? Do we have
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any -- you know, do we have any iInterest in bees,

folks?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I mean, the obvious
thoughts. 1 think this i1s just going to expose my
naivety, but there"s people with bee allergies and,
like, kids and 1 guess 1f | had a child and they
had a bee allergy, I"m not so sure 1 would want
bees next door to me or even three doors down, but
I also don"t have any knowledge of the hobby.

DIRECTOR VALONE: We do include getting
approval from the neighbor, being sensitive to the
fact that --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: How far are you requiring --

DIRECTOR VALONE: The direct neighbor.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Okay. Direct neighbors?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Right.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I would say we open it up to
be educated.

MR. KELLEHER: Hi. 1"m Tom Kelleher. 1 live
at 4424 Clausen. | have been a Western Springs
resident for 39 years, probably longer than some of
you have been alive.

But, anyway, 1 am not a beekeeper.

Okay? 1 have friends who are and know people who
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are. The closest guy was retired, but he had

bees -- three beehives In his backyard in Downers
Grove for years without any issues whatsoever and I
kind of got into what i1t 1s and 1 became
interested. 1 retired earlier this year, 1 thought
i1t would be something to do in retirement. My wife
raises monarchs, so something to counter her. And
I —- but 1 thought, first of all, 1t"s Western
Springs, | better find out i1f i1t"s legal and I
reached out last year and had some interaction with
Kelsey back and forth and 1 think 1t was
unofficially not allowed. Okay? |1 don"t know if
there®"s any ruling on the books, but i1t was told
that anytime anybody asks they were told no, and if
I wanted to pursue i1t 1 was going to have to front
some money and, you know, come here, and 1 just
thought all right, i1if I have to fight the City
Hall, forget i1t, you know? And 1 kind of gave up
on the 1dea and then Kelsey reached out to me a few
weeks ago and said that it was going to be on the
agenda and 1 said oh, okay, well, that"s
interesting, now I don"t have to pay to come here
and talk.

So way back when 1 reached out to
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the -- 1t"s called the Cook Dupage Beekeepers

Association, so it"s pretty much towns iIn Western
Cook County and Dupage of beekeepers and 1 talked
to the president of that association and he®s a
very passionate guy who was all into 1t, you know,
willing to support the cause, and he talked about
coming here tonight, but he did not. He told me --
he said, "'don"t you try to talk about It because
you don®"t know anything about beekeeping"” and I
said, 'okay, neither does anybody here. 1 could
probably say anything I want here.' But, anyway,
he was all passionate about i1t and he says, you
know, they got members iIn LaGrange and all over the
place. So he is very familiar with the whole
thing. He could probably answer all your
questions. |1 mean, that"s a new one | heard,
anybody who ever talked about having an allergy to
a honeybee that"s going to be an issue, but I don"t
know enough about i1t to say --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I don"t either.

MR. KELLEHER: -- good or bad. 1 got to say
It"s good because otherwise 1 think i1t would be
outlawed everywhere. But, anyway, once again,

don"t take that as the final answer, but I think --
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and I saw this and I saw the list of rules. 1

would like to defer to the association and see what
they collectively think of that before i1t actually
goes on record and how -- you know, what"s there or
what"s not there according to what they experience
all the time with the design. So I"m glad 1t"s
being considered.

I gave Kelsey public comments, so |
went to the internet, did some research, and came
up with Five pages of why beekeeping is good and
then there®s pages also In there about what you
should do with your neighbors, and you can all read
it, 1t"s all part of this, but it"s pretty clear,
pretty understanding about the whole thing iIn
itself. 1 think, you know, people hear about
swarms, they hear about the bad things, but there's
really so many good things about it, you know, |
think you all know that. It"s an endangered
species, et cetera, et cetera, so every little bit
any one person can do certainly adds up.

My wife released 200 monarch
butterflies this year. They say the population in
the country doubled last year, not just because of

her, but In good part because a lot of people like
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her. Obviously everybody loves monarchs, they

don"t sting, and usually honeybees don"t either
unless you, you know, get in their way.

So, anyway, | thank you for your
time. 1 think 1t"s something that should be
considered. 1 think it"s overall a good thing.
And, like I said, 1 think -- Kelsey, I think I"11
take this information that you have iIn here and
pass 1t on to the association to see what they have
to say for some feedback to give to you. And, if
necessary, maybe we could get them to come and talk
1T that meant something.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So under this we are
recommending, again, a restriction on number, a
setback, so they“"re not permitted to be inside.
They -- again, this flyway, this safety component.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Can you describe what that
consists of, a flyway, iIs that a net? What are we
talking about?

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1t"s almost like a fence
panel, essentially. What you want them to do is
have to force them to fly up In the air and not
just cut across, right? You want to force them up

In the ailr so they disburse and so that they don"t

www . ChimnrakCourtReporting.com

312.781.9111 630.983.0030

Page 45 of 170



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Village of Western Springs Plan Commission Meeting

10/28/2025

45
create a problem. That"s why it"s required to be a

certain six feet high -- oh.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: 1t looks like a
silk fence type of --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Okay. So there"s --

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah, there are a number of
different ones you can do, but, again, the idea is
to force it up into the air so they can"t swarm and
they disburse.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Okay.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So i1t has to be a minimum of
six feet high, again, so you get them up high
enough, and they are not permitted to be closer to
the property lines at ten feet anywhere either, so
try to kind of keep them inside. General
maintenance, they have to keep them i1n good
condition, they can"t just, you know, let them go
into disrepair. They have to -- 1If they have any
queens that are aggressive they have to manage that
themselves. It can"t be for commercial generation
of honey, right, it should just be your own home.
They have to have water, that®"s more for the bees
than anything else.

Registration, so they must maintain
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registration with the state of Illinois. The state

of Illinois has some requirements related to
beekeeping, so we would require them to show that
they are in compliance with that. Signage to let
the neighbors know they have hives, right?
Additionally, they would have to get a permit from
us to put some of these things In and make sure
that they"re compliant with it and then, again,
within that, they have to submit written notice
from neighbors that abut the property that they do
not object to having this there.

MR. KELLEHER: That"s what the Downers Grove
law was, that 1t was legal unless you had neighbors
who took issue with i1t.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah. So we looked at a
number of them. Like I said, we kind of saw some
that were, you know, 11l just say, less
restrictive and then some that were very
restrictive. We kind of leaned a little bit more
just toward more restrictive, more because we
don"t -- you know, we don"t have a lot of It yet.
Again, the DCO 1s a living document that we hope to
be more frequent iIn updating, not going three years

between, so 1t"s something that could change, this

www . ChimnrakCourtReporting.com

312.781.9111 630.983.0030

Page 47 of 170



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

Village of Western Springs Plan Commission Meeting

10/28/2025

47
really could just be a pilot program 1t folks are

interested i1n allowing 1t.

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Are there 1nquiries for
beekeeping from the town?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: One.

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Okay. Oh, that"s right.
Yes. Yes. Yes.

DIRECTOR VALONE: But I will say that we do
know of at least two others that had bees, 1 don"t
want to say "had.” One may still have, 1"m not
totally clear on. 1 think had.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: 1llegal bees.

MR. KELLEHER: ICE is going over there.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1t"s possible that we do
have some. 1 will say —-- and 1711 let Kelsey talk
about this because she did a ton of research on
this --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yeah, you guys did a lot of
research. Thank you for that.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Well, and she did a lot of
research into our current code, and the reason that
we didn"t believe that bees were currently allowed
IS because -- and 1"m going to let Kelsey talk

about this because 1t"s one of her favorite topics
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of how they can be i1dentified as being yours 1is

really a high requirement in our code.

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: No, this is the funniest
thing you"ll hear.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah.

MS. FAWELL: The requirement for it to be
considered a domestic animal, 1t has to have a
collar 1dentification and only domestic animals are
allowed on a property, so since the bee does not
have a collar, they are not allowed under the
current code.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So along with this we have
some minor modifications to the animal keeping part
of the code that doesn®"t require a public hearing,
that"s just i1nside our code, so If you can
recommend 1t, we have some accompanying language to
go with that chapter to bring to the Board just to
show that they reflect each other.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: And Staff 1s recommending
that we try this pilot program?

DIRECTOR VALONE: We are. We reached out to
Clarendon Hills and generally they have not really
had any complaints, and 1 would say they had the

least restrictive one that we looked at and they
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have a number of registrations.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Do you know how many bees
are in a colony, Tom?

MR. KELLEHER: Hundreds. |1 don"t have an
exact answer, but | do know this: There are wild
hives all over town.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Sure.

MR. KELLEHER: You got bees probably in trees,
maybe even iIn attics, you know, get In a house.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Hopefully not attics.

MR. KELLEHER: So, they"re there.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: They are.

Any discussion, Commissioners? Any
thoughts?

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: 1 think 1t"s worth
trying. And 1 do know that there i1s at least one
person who probably still has a hive.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Okay.

COMMISSIONER TURNER: Adjacent neighbors that

receive notice or you require their permission —-

DIRECTOR VALONE: Right. Notification is part

of the permit process.
COMMISSIONER TURNER: -- on the side, rear,

and across the street in the front?
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DIRECTOR VALONE: So 1t would be what touches

the property lines. We didn"t do across the
street. We could include across the street.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: Probably has i1t as
the rear, right?

COMMISSIONER TURNER: Just rear and the sides.

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: 1t"s -- the language is
defined as 'abutting.” So anything that touches
the property line.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Even that little corner.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: If you"re walking down
the sidewalk and you®"re allergic to bees, you might
want to know.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Well that"s why they"re
required to have signage.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: At the front?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Well, right, they"re
required to have signage on all sides notifying
that they have the area, that"s correct.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Okay. Including the
front?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yes.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Okay. Sorry. |1

misunderstood.
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MR. KELLEHER: That"s better than a guard dog.

MS. DEN BESTEN: 1 just have --

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah, i1t must be posted on
all property -- oh, I"m sorry, Lisa.

MS. DEN BESTEN: No. No. 1It"s okay.

DIRECTOR VALONE: It must be -- so 1t says

I —- or, excuse me, J, signage. Weather proof sign
no greater -- we should correct that. No
greater --

MS. DEN BESTEN: That"s what 1 was going
to point out.

DIRECTOR VALONE: -- than 12 inches by 10
inches, must be posted on all property lines facing
abutting properties and outside of the (inaudible)
stating that they have a state registered beehive.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: The way 1 read that
would be you have a rear neighbor and two side
neighbors, but you don®"t have an abutting neighbor
in the front.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Well, 1f 1t was a corner --
we have got a couple of these pie lots that this
would apply to, but we can easily just say --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: You could clarify that.

That the would be a good --
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DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah.

MR. KELLEHER: 1 think from a practical point
of view they go up and out, and they don"t go up
and out as a swarm, and 1 think -- and this is in
the details -- they"ll go within, like, a three
mile radius, so, you know, they go up and they
spread out. So they"re not, you know, necessarily
even 1n your yard, you know, when they"re out
pollinating.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: That"s great.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Okay. So we®"ll clarify just
the abutting property with the signage.

Was there anything else we wanted to
modify In this one?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I don"t think so. Motion?

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: So moved.

COMMISSIONER HANSON: Motion to approve.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Second?

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Second.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All those i1n favor?

(Chorus of ayes.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Opposed?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Thank you.
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Thank you, Tom.

MR. KELLEHER: Thank you.

MS. FAWELL: Okay. Now on to our next --

MR. KELLEHER: Excuse me. 1 don"t mean to be
rude, but there®s a world series going on. Thank
you.

MS. FAWELL: Thank you.

Okay. So now on to our last
amendment related to residential properties.

So currently our code has a
requirement of related to accessory uses and
structures that restricts the maximum coverage
within a rear yard to 35 percent of the rear yard,
and that applies to all properties within our
single family district. So 1T someone is going to
put a shed or a patio or a detached garage, all of
those contribute to the maximum coverage within a
rear yard.

Again, this also applies the same to
our corner and reverse corner lots and on the
screen you can see that with an interior lot the
rear yard runs the full width of the property, so
there®s more rear yard area, there"s more of that

35 percent coverage. With a corner property, the
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corner side yard extends the width of the corner

lot line except for that front yard area and it
extends past that year yard, so the rear yard does
not go all the way to the property like, so
effectively that overall rear yard area 1is
significantly smaller than what our interior lots
are seeing. So with our corner properties this is
something that I have kind of run Into issues with
over the past year and a half i1s that when our
corner properties want to install a detached garage
on their property, they can"t do it In the corner
side yard, that"s against code, they have to move
It Into the rear yard. When you implement that

35 percent coverage requirement, it effectively
fits the standard 50 foot, 100 foot lot. They"re
barely going to fit a two car garage. And, again,
that®"s not going to exclude any other structures
they have back there or the driveway.

So Staff i1s recommending that that
coverage restriction be removed from the code as it
applies to corner and reverse corner lots. There
are still coverage requirements related to maximum
lot coverage for the entire property, 50 percent

maximum coverage related to driveways on the
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property, those are still going to be In place, so
they"re still going to have to meet that maximum
lot coverage, but since we have been running iInto
some i1ssues with our corner lot properties meeting
this requirement, we"re proposing that i1t be
removed.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So this is -- in your red
lines this 1s 10-4-4 accessory uses and structures
just below the table 10-4.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: 193.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So we"re just proposing to
exempt them. It does not change the fact that they
cannot put garages in the corner side yard, i1t just
means that -- effectively we did the math and
essentially 1t reduces the rear yard area by about
40 percent on a standard lot and so i1t makes it
really difficult for those folks to have the same
kind of accessory structures as the interior lots.
Doesn®"t change where the garage is going to be
placed, i1t likely isn"t going to change what they
would put back there anyways, 1t would just make 1t
a little bit easier for them to be putting the same
structures their neighbors are but still hold the

coverage, still hold the setbacks, all the other
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items.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Commissioners, any questions
on this one?

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1"m dying to know what Steve
has on this one because this i1s the one 1 thought
Steve would be really interested in.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Since we"re encouraging
people to build garages and I know there are a
couple lots i1n town where the garages are too small
for two cars in this exact scenario, 1 would
suggest that instead of giving them -- except this
provision shall not apply to require rear yards and
corner (inaudible) lots 35 percent restriction.

You might want to put a limit of, say, 440 square
feet, which 1s a 22 X 20 two-car garage, you know,
up to a maximum of 440 square feet.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So what we could do --

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Because this gives them
carte blanche.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Well, they still have the
gross floor, right?

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Right. But --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: So -- all right.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Right. But you can
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still -- you can bode more in to the backyard.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Right.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 think alternatively we
were thinking about we would just exempt detached
garages from the 35 percent.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Which 1s already limited in

DIRECTOR VALONE: Right. So everything else
would still be held to i1t, but the detached garage
would not be. The driveway still would be. That
was our other alternative. Thoughts on that?

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: 1"m open to that.
Yeah.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Or we -- or they"re not
restricted. Thoughts?

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: So --

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 know this i1s a hard one.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: 1"m thinking. So
there®s actually a couple of things going on.

One, what happens on that particular
corner lot and, two, how it affects their neighbors
in terms of size of structure that can be built
closer to their homes.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Honestly, what 1t ends up
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being --

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: It"s garage on
garage.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah. And, honestly, what
It ends up being for a lot of these folks, and
maybe you want to talk about Jim Sorka (phonetic)
just as a general one, but what ends up happening
Is they just have to move it really close to the
house then, kind of like truncates their yard.
They still have to be ten feet from the house to
the detached garage, but essentially what they do
Is they just try to move the garage into like the
building envelope area and 1t just kind of presses
their garage and their house closer together and it
kind of impacts the usability of the other part of
the yard is kind of why we"re really thinking about
most of our garages.

Do you want to talk about Jim Sorka
just generally? He"s a little different. He"s
looking for something to be very accessible for his
spouse, so he"s looking for something very big, but
I think he"s a good example.

MS. FAWELL: Yeah. 1 mean, he"s a 50-foot

wide lot, and this i1s just off the top of my head,
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but 1 think what 1 remember is that the maximum

area for garage he could have within the rear yard
was about 367 square feet based on the 35 percent
coverage, which did not meet what he needed for his
property. And then also, again, that comes into
the fact that you have sidewalk leading up to the
garage door or if the driveway is iIn that yard.
Because, again, as Heather pointed out, it"s just
the required rear yard, i1t"s not necessarily the
rear yard from the location of the house. So In
this graphic on the screen, that home i1s located
jJust against the rear yard, but a lot of the
properties are actually located about 60 feet from
the rear lot line, so that"s what Heather is saying
when they have that ability to move into the
buildable area for the garage, they will do 1t.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: (Inaudible) Park
there®s not 135-foot deep lots.

MS. FAWELL: Yes.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: So they come very
close.

MS. FAWELL: And then -- yes. And this 1is
just for the corner lots. Again, they"re still

going to be held to our other coverage requirements
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and standards and they®re still going to be held to

the setback locations for garages and accessory
structures.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: 1 still lean to the 440
square foot max. That"s a full two car garage.

MS. FAWELL: Yeah. And that -- and I think
we -- I mean, we can tweak the language, but this
requirement Is for any coverage iIn the rear yard,
so It"s not just garage, but we can tweak 1t to say
440 square foot garage.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Right. But you®re
going to -- so 1f you"re only -- as written
currently, you can only build 300 and how many
square feet In the rear yard?

MS. FAWELL: 35 percent.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: No. No. The garage we
were just talking about with Jim Sorka.

MS. FAWELL: 1t was 367 for his specific
property.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Right. So he could
build a full two car garage the way the ordinance
IS written.

MS. FAWELL: No. Correct.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: All right. So that's
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why I"m suggesting that we give them enough leeway

to build a full two car garage without giving them
any sort of restriction otherwise.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 think 1t might be cleaner
to just say that we exempt -- so we can say except
this provision shall not apply to detached garages
on corner and reverse coverer lots. 1 think that
one might be a little bit clearer. The 440, I
mean, most of the garages that we"re seeing coming
in are looking for two cars and then some storage.
So. ..

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: So you get to the point
where you need to get a bigger lot.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Well, 1 mean, we also have a
lot of very older structure older garages, too,
that exist here that don"t comply because, you
know, the -- 1T you look at The Sidwell across
Western Springs, 1If they were going to short a lot,
they shorted the corner lot. So they“re already at
a disadvantage, and then we have -- we have
provisions related to the reverse corner where some
of our neighbors do not either. So we"re
relatively regulatory on our corner lots and, for

example, too, the garage, the detached garage
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cannot be further forward either than the

neighboring house that fronts on that side either.
So they have quite a number of restrictions to
really locate these and so, you know, we haven"t
run Into a situation where we have had -- again,
the one that Kelsey i1s discussing 1s somebody who
iIs looking to build a detached garage that would be
accessible for theilr spouse, but we haven"t
necessarily run into a situation quite that large,
but we have had a number of people who have just
been right under having, you know, like, a 23 by 23
where they can actually open the door when they get
out of the car and have a little bit of storage for
the lawn mower. So i1t may be cleaner just to
exempt the garages because, again, they"re still
going to be held to gross floor area and building
coverage, so 1t"s likely the bulk of that i1s not
going to get too out of whack with the size
requirement of the lot anyways. It would just be
how they"re trying to locate, right? They"re not
pushing i1t so far up, you know, or so far in that
it kind of makes the rest of their yard
unmanageable.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All right. 1 can get behind

www . ChimnrakCourtReporting.com

630.983.0030

Page 63 of 170



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

312.781.9111

Village of Western Springs Plan Commission Meeting

10/28/2025

63
that. Is that --

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Yeah. |1 can get behind
that.

MS. DEN BESTEN: |If I may? To Steve®s point
about shallower lots, like Springdale has a lot of
unusual dimensioned lots. Has anybody looked at
Springdale properties to see 1t this would be --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I think they require
attached garages in Springdale.

MS. DEN BESTEN: 1"m sorry?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I believe they require
attached garages in Springdale.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Oh, do they?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Most of them are attached.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Well, most of them are
attached because of the age of the structure.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Oh, okay. So for a shallower
lot I think, you know, 1t might be hard to work in
even 1T there"s 1s this exception, you know,
without hurting neighbors.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 mean, i1f there was
something that, you know, they were going to need
to seek a setback variation or a size or et cetera,

they would be able to valance swap the BZA process.
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You know, we have -- we really do have true

separate neighborhoods i1n town, especially when you
move south, and so we do see differences 1iIn
architecture and, you know, style of homes. So we
have not yet had a detached garage iIn Springdale
come through since I have been here. We have seen
additions, but we have not had detached. But on
the shallower lots i1t does just make this, you
know, a bit worse as well, too, because then it
really, you know, constrains where they®"re going to
be able to put this garage. It"s probably going to
have to go In the corner anyways, but i1If a little
bit of 1t, Iinstead of a lot of i1t, being need to be
pushed toward the house, right, where they"re
shortening up that usable yard between the two
buildings, right, 1t"s allowing them to give the
more Flexibility to put 1t somewhere where they
have a useable yard. 1 think that®"s kind of the
goal that we have been hearing from folks, that
they"re trying to make sure that they can still
have a two car garage, but then have functional
spaces outside as well like their counterparts that
are interior lots.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Any other --
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COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: 1 have another idea.

So we have the ten foot separation between detached
garages and houses and you can"t build any of your
house within the rear yard, but in this case would
It make sense to make an exemption that you can
build an attached garage in the rear yard, free up
that ten foot space for a larger garage.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Hmm. 1 think we have to
take a little look at that. We really considered
this more related to detached garages because
that"s what you see on the corner lots more. |
think we would have to do some research and come
back on that one. | don®"t know that I can speak
intelligently on the attached garages. We have
had -- there have been variations where we have
reduced the separation, the ten foot separation and
required certain building components to make up for
that, but the attached garages, we would -- 1 don"t
think we can speak on that tonight.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: But this 1s a living
document, you can --

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah. We can bring that
back. Yeah, we can easily bring that back with the

next set.
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CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: 1 would entertain a motion

1T anyone i1s so inclined.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So are we deciding on
just —-

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Well 1 think Steve -- 1|
think we got back to this existing language In the
end. It took us a minute and 1 think that was good
discussion.

DIRECTOR VALONE: This was the one I

thought -- 1 was like for sure -- | was like Steve
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IS going to be right on this one. This Is the one.

COMMISSIONER TURNER: Motion to approve with

the existing language.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Is there a second?
COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Second.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All those i1n favor?

(Chorus of ayes.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Opposed?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Kelsey, we"re In your hands.
MS. FAWELL: Sorry. We took a -- one second.

Okay. There®"s a text amendment proposed to the

general development within Section 8 of the code,

and this should sound familiar to you all from --
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you recently, maybe almost over a year now,

reviewed the application for 5600 Wolf, which was a
planned development. That development requested a
deviation from our code®"s requirement for five-acre
minimum development for planned developments. You
can see on the screen that these are our most
recent planned developments. Since the 90s, the
only planned development that actually met our
five-acre minimum requirement is Timber Trails. We
don®"t have a property of that size within our
Village currently, unless someone consolidates. So
Staff i1s proposing that this five-acre requirement
be removed and the reference to "large scale
development' be removed this 1s iIn line with the
development trends of the Village. 1It"s in line
with --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Page 218, Commissioners.
I1"m sorry.

MS. FAWELL: No worries.

-- Plan Commission and Village Board
recommendations for reductions in these large scale
developments.

111 take any questions.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: No, 1 think many of us were
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here for a lot of those five acres. |1 mean, it
made sense that i1t was planned development, but i1t
didn"t make sense that five acres was an arbitrary
kind of requirement.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Well, and 1 think what we
have seen, right, is we don"t really have anything
left that"s going to be that size.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: But you are going to have
potentially another planned development somewhere.

DIRECTOR VALONE: And I think -- you know,
Kelsey brought up a recent case, but 1 think a lot
of the discussion related to that thought that it
was somehow related to like density, but this is
the general requirement across every single zoning.
It really —- you know, 1 think what it thought i1t
was doing was this 1s a sizable enough piece of
property to trigger, right, in Western Springs to
need a planned development, but we have kind of run
out of those, but we"re going to need, likely,
planned developments for some infield development,
maybe i1t does get five, maybe it"s not shy of --
not quite there, but I think It"s -- It"s something
that necessarily just doesn®t fit with our current

trend of development.
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CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I agree. Any debate?

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: No debate.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Entertain a motion?

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Motion to approve.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Second?

COMMISSIONER TURNER: Second.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All those i1n favor?

(Chorus of ayes.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Opposed?

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Aye.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Those were in favor, yes?

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Right. Yes.

DIRECTOR VALONE: All right. So this one is
mine and Anne"s favorite topic of the night. So 1
think a lot of you remember In 2014 medical
cannabis became something that was allowed in
Illinois, and at that time there was a certain set
of regulations that came down related to medical
cannabis. The Village, you know, kind of put
together some things, but didn"t really move
forward on a number of things, and then -- and then
in 2020, right, we had the new recreational
cannabis act come iInto the affect, so we really

need to address medical cannabis. It"s -- Staff is
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not proposing recreational cannabis based on the
referendum results, i1t"s clear that that"s not of
interest, but we are required, by the state, to
have some provisions related to medical cannabis.
So a number of years ago, a number of -- as
Attorney Jurusik likes to call them, bubble maps,
were put together looking at sites that were far
enough away from churches and schools and other,
you know, sensitive uses, and a few areas were
determined, but the problem really relates to we
have to be far enough away from a sensitive use,
but we have to have more than one opportunity for
them to locate. It doesn™"t say how many, It just
says more than one. So this was one that had been
identified a long time ago and not kind of moved
forward with. We run the risk that the state
requires us to allow 1t, but we don"t have any
local requirements.

However, In saying that, since 2020,
a medical only license has not been issued. It"s
just not lucrative, right, for somebody to just get
a medical only when they can apply for
recreational. So Staff is proposing -- and 1

believe -- did you -- thank you for belng our page
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finder. 1 --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: 185. 185. 1 won"t take
credit.

DIRECTOR VALONE: We put together, generally,
just the same recommendations about distances and
security requirements that are included on the
state"s provision, and then also were originally
proposed. This would just make us whole with the
state then it someone did -- in the unlikelirhood
that somebody does come in, you know, they would
have to adhere to standards, otherwise they would
be permitted to really locate anywhere that the
state standard would allow, so this would give us a
little bit more control, but, again, a medical
license has not been issued by the state of
I1linois since 2020. Medical only.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Makes sense to me.

DIRECTOR VALONE: And, again -- and we can
walk through 1t, but there i1s security
requirements, right, they have to have certain
lighting requirements, parking requirements, they
have to show that they, you know, are meeting the
requirements and the standards.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Just cleaning 1t up so that
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we"re iIn better compliance. | get It.

VALONE: We"re making us whole and

making sure that 1f in the unlikelihood it happens,

that the Village would -- would

happened. | just think 1t"s very

SKRODZKI: Better to have something

GLIMCO: Right.

VALONE: Yes.

GLIMCO: Better to have a place you

want it than somewhere else that you wouldn®t want
iIt. It"s never going to happen.

COMMISSIONER TURNER: No.
GLIMCO: 1 would entertain a motion.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: I move to approve.

GLIMCO: 1Is there a second?

COMMISSIONER HANSON: Second.

GLIMCO: All those iIn favor?

(Chorus of ayes.)

GLIMCO: Opposed?

(No response.)

VALONE: Well, thank you. That has

been my stick for, like, two years now.
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MS. FAWELL: Okay. We are close to being

done, but Staff i1s proposing an overlay district be
added to our downtown called "The Downtown
Pedestrian Overlay District.” It IS seen on your
screen In the patched blue. This i1s the result.

In February the Village adopted -- or approved, I
should say, our downtown market assessment that was
done by Teska. And iIn that market assessment Teska
had some recommendations iIn their findings and
identified the Village®s core downtown and made
some recommendations related to commercial uses of
our C1 and C2 district. So the i1dea with our
downtown pedestrian overlay district -- sorry.

What page?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: 198.

MS. FAWELL: 198.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 198. Yeah.

MS. FAWELL: With downtown pedestrian overlay
district is that this would restrict some of the
first floor uses in those blue patched areas, so
they"re more -- teal -- so they"re more retail and
pedestrian oriented friendly. So i1t would restrict
offices to the second floor, 1t would require some

retail components, use certain service uses. What
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our goal here 1s to create a more pedestrian

friendly environment, encourage retail. Our market
assessment 1dentified that we have a number of our
first floor office spaces, retail medical spaces in
our downtown, and, as Heather can speak to more, we
do have a number of retail users that reach out
often about moving i1n to our downtown, so we think
that this will promote that.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So we found that we -- you
know, we have iInterest iIn Western Springs, but
rarely do these come on the market, and when they
come on the market, what we"re seeing iIs that
office spaces are the ones who are i1nvesting money
to upgrade the spaces to make them usable because
they have the money and they"re paying the higher
rent, so that"s why we"re seeing that. And so what
we"re just proposing iIs that 1t an office use wants
to come i1In that has kind of a different impact,
right, than some of our retail, that they would
need a conditional use. As of right they could go
on a second floor, but they would need a
conditional use. We routinely have i1ssues with
some of our medical offices having different needs

than our downtown designed parking, which 1is
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designed for retail, and we"re relatively

landlocked. So those people could still come in,
we"re not saying those folks can®"t, but they would
need to come in and show that their i1mpacts would
fit the downtown. We do have employee parking, but
what we see frequently i1s that some of the folks
who don®"t want to park on kind of the periphery
where we put the employees will have their office
staff park kind of closer in, too, and then, you
know, end up with other issues. So what we"re
really trying to do is these core blocks, right,
these core blocks that really are our walkable
downtown, we"re trying to make sure that they have,
you know, lively entertainment based, retail based
service uses, right, so i1t really feels like a
pedestrian downtown, kind of go back to where we
were because we have these uses that people have
lost that they would love to have back. |1 mean,
our bakery, our hardware store, our deli, right?
Like these uses are gone in other places and we are
lucky to still have them, but we could foster more
of that, right? And 1t"s not to say that we
couldn®t have service uses, right? We can still

have salons, 1t"s just we"re trying to put some of
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that retail front up there so that people can

window shop and people feel like they can move from
store to store. We"re trying to make the physical
area feel more like our walkable downtown that we
want to be.
So 1t would just be these blocks.

Again, 1t would be restricted of office use for
conditional use on the first floor. They would
come through a process, you have seen the
conditional use process, they would show they meet
the standards, right, they“re not going to
negatively impact our downtown and that they fit
into the area. Existing uses, they stay until --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: That was --

DIRECTOR VALONE: -- they change ownership,
right.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: They don"t need a
conditional use, they don"t do anything?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Right.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Okay.

DIRECTOR VALONE: They stay where they are,
but, you know, i1f -- 1If Fawell Podiatry moves out
and Valone Accounting moves i1n, they“re going to

have to -- I"m going to have to get a conditional
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use, right, to show that my use isn"t going to
impact our downtown in a negative way.
Thoughts?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I like 1t.

COMMISSIONER HANSON: 1 like 1t.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: A lot of real estate,
Insurance things, you know, people can®"t walk in
and go shop there.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 know. And we have this
beautiful downtown and I would love to get more
people to come here. We"re a hidden gem, but they
end up kind of walking big distances, right,
between some of our retail uses. And, 1 apologize,
I should have said this, too. This really
modernizes our use list. So I know -- and we"ll
pull up the page 1In a second -- but I know this
table looks really big, but in our code right now
it"s like -- oh, thank you, Kelsey -- 1t Is -- you
have to go In to each individual one, look at the
list, see 1T 1t"s there. We"re proposing just to
consolidate this too, right, and make this easier
for people who want to move here to say oh, this is
my use, this is where I want to go, oh, I can do

it, you know, or oh, I need a conditional use.
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We"re not trying to make this hard for folks. We

are also modernizing the use list. We still have a
number of things that really aren®t
representational anymore or we have things that we
want that we don"t actually have uses for. A great
example 1s our neighbor over here, 1t"s partial
entertainment use, i1t"s partial eating and drinking
establishment. Our code doesn"t contemplate that.
Our code contemplates single uses 1In a single
building. We don"t see that anymore, right? We
see people who are doing more than one thing at
once, too, so we really need to bring our
commercial use list up so that we can keep doing
the use. And we can do 1t. People are very
interested. 1 have got lists of people that I send
out all the time just trying to find a little
spot --

PRESIDENT RUDOLPH: A lot of our neighbors do
this, too, right?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah.

PRESIDENT RUDOLPH: La Grange, others.

DIRECTOR VALONE: That"s right.

MS. FAWELL: Yes, their retails are very

similar.
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CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: And this a long term play,

right? This i1s —-

DIRECTOR VALONE: Right.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: There i1s also sales tax
revenue that we"re not having with service
businesses.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Right. Correct.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Also 1t will —- 1t will also
kind of put a renewed vibrancy In our downtown in
more than one way; sales tax, but also 1T we"re
having changes of uses, that also means that our
spaces are going to have to come up to code, too,
and that"s what we see frequently i1s somebody comes
In and says the landlord has not invested in the
space and I can"t move In here because I can"t fix
up their building to then move in and do my own
improvements, right? And we have started a
property improvement grant program, right, to
assist with that, and we have our tip districts to
also help us with that, but this would be another
way, too, to, you know, get those uses that we want
and get just renewed vibrancy in the downtown,
right, in general. We still might see, you know,

people move 1In and they still need to make upgrades
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to the building, but, you know, 1t"s a way for us

to play the long game and start moving towards, you
know --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: And some of these businesses
that are there will stay for a long time.

DIRECTOR VALONE: They might.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: That"s just the way it 1is.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 hear all the time, too, "l
can"t believe you let another real estate agent,"”
well, I can"t restrict that right now. 1 can"t.
Just like I couldn®"t -- 1 mean, I couldn®t -- also
like 1f, you know, multiple delis wanted to move
in, too, I couldn®t restrict that either, but this
woulld give us a little bit more ability to say, all
right, hold on, you know, you"re going to have
office employees that are going to be there, you"re
going to use the building differently, you know,
like how does this fit 1in with the fabric of where
you are, and if 1t fits in, it fits in, right? |If
It comes through your process and it meets that
requirement, then i1t does, but it allows a more
streamline approval process for the more vibrant
pedestrian friendly entertainment downtown.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: And, again, you have hired
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consultants to help you with this and this was

their recommendation, so 1t"s not -- 1t"s based on
the expert.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1It"s not just us, yeah.
It"s not just us.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Right.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah, the attachment in
their packet, 1t"s called Memorandum Commercial
Districts, Teska took a look at it for us given
that they also do our market study, too, It made
sense that they kind of helped us implement part of
that.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Questions, anyone?

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: 1t"s a great idea.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Sorry. 1°"m making your
meeting longer, right?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: No, that"s okay.

MS. DEN BESTEN: So, can you explain, like so
this says the district promotes et cetera, so the
district reserves fTirst floor commercial. How firm
Is that the way this i1s worded? In other words,
let"s say nine months goes by and we have an empty
storefront and 1t"s because we can"t find anybody

who meets these conditions, then does the Village
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loosen up or, you know, we don®"t want a bunch of

empty storefronts either, right?

DIRECTOR VALONE: No, we don®"t. That"s
correct. We don"t. We do want to make
opportunities, though. |1 think we are lacking iIn
that. We learned that through quite a bit of data
from our consultants that we are lacking the
opportunity for people to do that. But those
purpose statements are really to give more guidance
to this table. This table is really, right, what
people can and cannot do. Those purpose
statements, they do give us, you know, direction
and things like that, but this table i1s really
what"s going to hold us to 1t. And the reason iIt"s
written that way, too, Is to give minute
Tflexibility to some of those categories, too,
right? Like some of these categories say like a
30 percent accessory use on another retail use,
right? Like what 1s that use though, right? Like
iIs It —- I"m sorry. |1 had a really good example of
this. ITf that 30 percent i1s like, you know,

30 percent accounting in the front and they"re
shoving a storefront in the front to, like, be able

to put theilr accounting business there, that
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doesn"t really feel like i1t, right? So the purpose

statements are guiding us, but this table really
Is, you know, what is permitted and what isn*"t, but
they go together, right, to kind of --

MS. DEN BESTEN: Yeah. Okay. Thank you.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Good job.

Is there a motion?

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Motion to approve.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Second?

COMMISSIONER HANSON: Second.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All those i1n favor?

(Chorus of ayes.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Opposed?

(No response.)

MS. FAWELL: Okay. And, finally, last but not
least, we are proposing regulations within our
temporary use permit section, same section that the
bees were proposed. | don"t have a page number 1in
front of me. [I"m sorry.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah, so you"re going back
to, I believe it"s -- is 1t 2087

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I"m looking at page 196.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 was close. |1 was close.

MS. FAWELL: So the Village i1s proposing
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regulations allowing food trucks. The restrictions

are related to hours of operation, required
permitting and fees, right of way approval and
confirmation and notification with the Village,
health and safety requirements, quite an extensive
list, but right now the Village does not have any
formal codes on food truck vendors. We do have
some businesses and also some of our events in town
that do like to utilize food trucks that their
property, so this is the result of that.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So this wouldn®t just allow
anybody to come in, right? This requires you to be
In connection with an existing brick and motor
business and just be using this as a supplement.

It still puts restrictions on how many times you
can bring 1t, right? We don"t want to make any
kind of, you know, competition for our local brick
and mortar restaurants more than we need to. IT
you"re going to do 1t on public property i1it"s more
restricted and you need to have certain things 1in
place so that 1f, Heaven forbid, something happens
we know you"re properly iInsured, you have safety
equipment on site and the you"re going to be

following the Village®s requirements and letting us
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know you"re there, right, so that i1f we"re coming

to an emergency situation, we know what®"s happening
there. We did call 1t "mobile food vending" just
because -- | mean, food trucks are popular, right,
but we also see other things that aren®t a hotdog
cart, but, like, for example, there®s a neighbor in
La Grange who has, like, a pizza oven he trails, so
we wanted to open i1t up a bit. But, again, this
iIsn“t carte blanche, and this 1sn"t just anyone can
just, you know, pull up on the green and start
selling hotdogs, right? They would have to
actually be attached to one of our businesses here
for a reason. It also would help us with our
licensing of mobile food vendors that we use for
special events, both the Village, the Park District
and some of our other local agencies. Right now If
you want to be a french market vendor and also like
sell food at a little league tournament, you have
to register each individual time, and that"s a
little cumbersome, not just for the applicant, also
for us because we"re getting the same documentation
again, we"re getting the fee again. We"re
proposing iIt"s a one time a year registration and

then you would be able to participate, right? It
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does have a higher value on i1t because i1t would

allow you to do more than one event, but, again, It
still restricts that 1t can"t just be anybody
rolling up, 1t has to be attached to an actual
business and there are sill regulations on the
number of times that they can be iIn town, right?

We want to, you know, allow interesting food
options and have, you know, our local businesses be
able to have, what 1"m going to call, "mini

events,” right, like something that"s not normal
for them to draw additional attention to them, but
we also want to make sure that, you know, we"re
still being cognisant of our existing brick and
mortar eating establishments as well, and 1t will
make French Market easier for me.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yeah.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So, thoughts? |1 mean, you
know, this iIs -- this iIs newer. We did have Teska
help us look at this because everybody has got a
different version. Like La Grange Park just
adopted one. Hinsdale has a really restrictive
one. Clarendon Hills has kind of a middle of the

road, Westmont has a middle of the road. We had

them just take a look at some of our neighbors,
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also kind of in the context, right, that we"re
really not looking to do this carte blanche, we"re
really looking to do 1t just to kind of boost our
existing businesses, and then there®s French
Market, you know?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: So you went with the middle
of the road approach?

DIRECTOR VALONE: We did, yeah. |ITf they“"re on
the street that have to tell us 14 business days 1In
advance, right? We got to know they"re there. We
got to know they have insurance. You know, we"re
the landlord in that situation, so that"s why it"s
a limited number of times, too, because i1t"s
burdensome for us and we"re the landlord then
giving them somewhere to set up shop, right? Even
though they"re servicing a different business.

PRESIDENT RUDOLPH: Does this include the
parks or how does it apply to the parks other than
events?

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1t would just be events at
the park. So, like, for example, Little League has
a couple of food trucks that will come to some of
their bigger events because there®s really nothing

over there that they can get ahold of really
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quickly. We have had a couple of people who have
rented out the Village Club -- yes, Village Club,
excuse me, who have, like, wanted to bring, like,
the mobile pizza guy. So 1t -- again, in those
instances, public property, 1t"s going to be
limited. So Little League i1s only permitted to
have -- 1 think 1t"s, like, two or three vendors
for their whole season, and because they"re within
the parks parking lot, they"re off Waldo Emerson,
we haven"t necessarily treated that like 1T they
were on the street, but this would give us
permissions that 1t they did want to impact 1it,
they could. So 1t opens i1t up. |1 mean, i1t does.

But, again, it would have to be attached to an

actual use. They couldn®t just roll up to the park

on a Saturday for no reason.

COMMISSIONER HANSON: And how many times a
year are you allowing the vendors to...

DIRECTOR VALONE: So on the private property
we"re proposing more than public property, right,
because 1f 1t"s private property they"re using
private property, it"s going to be relatively
unimpactful to our streets, right? And then for

public property we"re proposing a more restricted
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number. | apologize. 1 haven"t looked at this
in --

MS. FAWELL: 1It"s two days per month for
public right of way, one day per month for private.
DIRECTOR VALONE: No. 1 think that"s --

MS. FAWELL: Did I reverse it? Other way

around.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yes, other way around. Yes.

MS. FAWELL: Two days if adjacent to private
property --

DIRECTOR VALONE: Right. Yes.

COMMISSIONER TURNER: So can an outside vendor
that"s not attached to an existing business, can
they come 1n and operate their food truck?

DIRECTOR VALONE: No. Unless they were
participating in French Market or gathering on the
green or something where they would have to be --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: They would have to be
invited for some reason.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Right. Yeah. They couldn®t
just roll up with a hot dog truck.

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: So that would be part of
current special event process, which requires, you

know, an event to be -- an event plan to be
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submitted, to have a temporary use permit. If It"s

on public property there®"s a whole process with
regards to an event, so you can either be connected
to an event or to a brick and mortar business.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Steve likes to have a lot of
parties and he"s wondering if he does he can only
have a vendor truck one day a year.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1In your residential
neighborhood you®re looking for more than one day?

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Is that two per month
for residential?

MS. FAWELL: 1In a commercial district.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: Two in a
commercial —-

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I mean, once a year seems
kind of weird.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: -- but one per year
In residential.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 mean, we have gotten a
couple of requests, actually, for Halloween that
somebody wants to bring In a taco truck while the
kids are trick or treating they can stop by. We
have no provisions for that either, so that"s why

we have included this.
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PRESIDENT RUDOLPH: Cool.

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Which neighborhood?

PRESIDENT RUDOLPH: I want to go there.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1t"s Ridgewood. Come on you
guys, the Ridgewood people know how to party.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: One day a year just seems
kind of restrictive. | mean, I"m not saying 1™m
going to violate that or need to have more, but I
think there are people that like to host parties
there.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 mean, Steve, clearly
you"re living a better life than me. How many
times are you hosting parties? | have a four year
old, 1 don"t do anything.

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: It"s time that people
throw me under the bus.

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Is that number per
vendor? One time per -—-

DIRECTOR VALONE: No. Like per property
essentially.

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Well then what about the
commercial? What i1s the number on that?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Twice.

DIRECTOR VALONE: That"s two days per month.
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COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Two days per month.

COMMISSIONER HANSON: So how does that work
with the football games? Because they have food
trucks all the time.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So -- well, so, again,
they"re part of, like, more of an event process.
So, I mean, candidly we have just kind of allowed
them because they are on -- | mean, they“re not
technically private property, but they"re not on
the street, right? So that®"s how we have allowed
them iIn the past. Under this --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Seems like we should allow
that.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 mean, 1 think we just add
an exception related to -- 1 mean, the problem is
the parks are zoned residential, so we need to tie
It to a use and not necessarily a type of zoning,
but we can update that.

COMMISSIONER HANSON: A school use or...

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah. Exactly. Yeah. 1™m
sure LT probably has, like, the i1ce cream truck
pull up for graduation or --

PRESIDENT RUDOLPH: And people want to stay at

the game. 1 mean, it"s not like 1t"s detracting
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from any other business that"s coming in. 1 mean,

It"s nice.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Is the ice cream man a food
truck?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yes. He"s a mobile food
vendor.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: He"s out every day.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Yeah. The i1ce cream guys are
out all the came.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Are you going to limit the
Ice cream man now?

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Well he never stops, soO
technically he"s always moving. |If he just goes
one mile an hour --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: And the music never stops
either.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Although, he pulled up and
parked at French Market and | was like what? That
was bold. Nice guy, though. Very nice guy.

ATTORNEY SKRODzZKI: 1 was kidding for the
record, too.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: Also i1n special
events, do you define the area where these food

trucks can be?
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DIRECTOR VALONE: Right. So we"re tieing it

currently based on zoning district and then 1T it"s
in the right of way or not, but 1 think we can
easily amend 1t to include --

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: Downers was street
specific, | know, because they were very specific
with their downtown.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yes. 1 think we"re not
looking to be as restrictive on that because we
have people like Steve who like to --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Sorry, Steve.

DIRECTOR VALONE: But actually, 1 mean, 1 have
gotten a couple requests where, you know, we have
had folks who have been able to park them iIn their
driveways then and then we have -- 1t"s not the
public can walk up to them, right, and it"s just
people who are invited to theirs. 1 think that"s
kind of more of our concern i1s just making sure
we"re regulating those -- just anybody could walk
up to, right, we want to make sure they meet our
health code requirements.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: And the hours were,
what, 9:00 to 9:007?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Mm-hmm. Yeah. So they“re
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not here late, they"re not here early, they"re not

impacting our businesses early or late.

So we could -- 1 think we could
easily add -- 1T you"re all right to give us some
direction to draft that we could include provisions
related to our institutional uses, yeah?

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Schools and parks.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah. Institutional? Yeah.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Football --

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Right. Right.

DIRECTOR VALONE: That maybe somewhat mimic
the commercial, right? Yeah?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yeah.

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Sort of a hybrid of the
commercial and the then the event usage --

DIRECTOR VALONE: Right.

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: -- because 1t will be for
ongoing events.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Mm-hmm. Yeah.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: You guys put a lot of work
into this. Nice job.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Thank you. Seriously,
Kelsey has been like -- she has been doing a lot of

this and this is kind of what she likes to do, too.
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She®"s a zoning code person. | know, perfect, so we

appreciate 1it.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Were you born in 1993 when
the code was written?

MS. FAWELL: After.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: DCO i1s older than you.
Sorry, Kelsey.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 think that"s going to come
up after the comp claim when we fully overhaul it.
CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Lisa has a question.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Lisa?
MS. DEN BESTEN: 1 have a few things.

One question | have i1s like Davanti |
think 1s part of what I"1l1 call a restaurant
enterprise, | don*"t know what they call 1t, but a
lot of other restaurants, so how does their entity
compare to the term "vendor'™ or what if the vehicle
Is shared across three restaurants or something?
It"s still the same enterprise, so how does that
apply for the license not transferable? 1 mean, a
little different scenario.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah, so really what i1t is
IS, what we"re trying to get at there -- and our

health i1nspector gave us some guidance on this
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because she deals with this i1in other places -- what

she®s trying to say i1s that for licensing a
specific food truck in the fleet, 1T they"re going
to use a different one they got to give us the
information that we know 1t still complies with the
health requirements, so that"s what i1t really
means.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Okay.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Also, too, 1if,
hypothetically, we had somebody who was, like,
selling pizza and now they"re going to sell sushi,
right, we need to get back iIn there and make sure
that 1t"s going to be compliant for that type of
food risk, so that"s really what that"s trying to
get at.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Okay.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Not necessarily, like,
trying to be restrictive, 1t"s just trying to make
sure 1T there®s a triggering change In ownership
we -- just like a restaurant, we can get iIn there
and make sure they“re still compliant with the
health requirements.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Okay. Then next item is on

this page 196 we have 1B8 Village listed as
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certificate owner. In this section they talk about

food handling certification, driver®s license and
operations and then some insurance. | think It
would be worthwhile to specify what certificate
you“"re talking about.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: [Insurance certificate,
right?

MS. DEN BESTEN: Yeah.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Well, 1 know that, but I
think there are other things, like food handling
certification i1s in here too, so...

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah, we can update that. 1
think what we need to do is -- | think we might --
I think 1t might be easier for us to, like, say
kind of the certificate piece and then kind of
indent, | think, and then say under that
certificate --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: |Insurance. Yeah.

DIRECTOR VALONE: We can update that.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Then on C1 I think you want
to get rid of the "N" under -- for and licensing.
I think you want A licensing. Just a typo.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yep.
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DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah.

MS. DEN BESTEN: And then C -- the main C
there says that the license i1s valid for 12 months
from date of i1ssuance. 1 don"t know how many food
trucks might be candidates, but like other license
we have In town like the vehicle license, and, you
know, what we were discussing before where you had
the license says March 31st i1t expired. Do you
really want to be keeping track of the licenses all
year or would you rather -- since food trucks
probably aren®t going to be very prevalent iIn the
winter, have an April 1lst start date or something
like that?

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 think for now we have
decided to just do the iIssuance date because we
probably won®"t have very many. If I remember
correctly, too, and 1 was trying to find it, 1
thought we also referenced that they had to follow
along with our business licensing requirements,
which are a calender year.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Okay.

DIRECTOR VALONE: But much like the air
conditioners, 1 don"t want people to have to go

ping pong back and forth, so I think that"s a --
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MS. DEN BESTEN: I mean, just to ease the

Village®s work.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Well, and, again, | don"t
want people to have to be ping pong back through
code sections, right, because we referenced that
they need to --

MS. DEN BESTEN: That"s true, too.

DIRECTOR VALONE: -- do that, but, again, just
like the air conditioners, | don"t want them to
have to go six pages south just to find It"s a
calendar year.

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: 1 also had a reason for
that, though, because 1Tt 1t"s valid for 12 months
on date of iIssuance and there"s no issue with
regards to proration, i1If someone were to come in in
August and say, hey, you"re year started in April,
I only want to pay $50.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Well nobody does that for,
like, a vehicle sticker, do they?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yeah, they do.

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: 1 have -- proration iIs a
very real issue 1T they come In and say I didn"t
get my full year, I don"t want to pay for a full

year. So 12 months from issuance makes it simpler
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and 1t eliminates that possible complaint.

MS. DEN BESTEN: 1 see. Okay.

DIRECTOR VALONE: But I think an update that
essentially says application January 1, and then 12
months from date of issuance.

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Sure. | don®"t mind. 1I™m
jut pointing out that was one of the reasons why we
went that route.

MS. DEN BESTEN: Thank you for explaining.

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Yeah.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Thoughts?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Is there a motion related to
mobile food trucks?

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Motion to approve.

DIRECTOR VALONE: And, just to clarify, so
that includes updates for the iInstitutional uses --

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Yes.

DIRECTOR VALONE: -- and then update to the
COl and then Kelsey has got the typo.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yes.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Okay. And then 1 apologize,
Johann was first.

COMMISSIONER HANSON: Second.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All those i1in favor?
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(Chorus of ayes.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Opposed?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Motion passes.

MS. FAWELL: Okay. We already addressed the
public comment section, it was our beekeeping -- or
advocate, not a beekeeper, beekeeping advocate, and
then, finally, last but not least, | do just want
to make sure we at least directly mention the text
amendment standards, there are fTive.

The first one i1s that it 1s not
intended to benefit a specific property. Within
the Staff report, Staff did comment that a lot --
that these amendments are applicable to all
commercial property, Cl, residential, whatever that
respective zoning district 1s, it"s not specific to
a specific property.

B, the consistency of the proposed
amendment with the objectives of the ordinance and
intent of the zoning district regulations. Again,
Staff responded to this iIn the report. We feel
that our commercial use regulations foster a
commercial environment and a retail friendly

downtown and, also, our residential amendments are
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consistent with some variations, it also helps

eliminate some nonconformities and helps our
residential properties have a streamline process.

Letter C, the degree, i1f any, to
which the proposed amendment would create
nonconformity. Again, | think most of our
amendments address -- or actually result iIn less
nonconformities specifically related to our single
family residential properties.

The consistency of the proposed
amendment with the comprehensive plan. We feel
that our residential amendments reflect the
residential neighborhoods and try to support those
residential neighborhoods in the design as well as,
again, we"re supporting a pedestrian friendly
downtown district and making sure our uses are
up-to-date with industry norm and user friendly.

And then, finally, the degree, if
any, to which the proposed amendment contradicts
Village policy as established in previous rulings
on petitions in similar circumstances.

So we fTeel that this is iIntended to
support our Village®s current policy, it complies

with our downtown market assessment and downtown
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pedestrian plan, It supports our comprehensive

plan, we don"t feel i1t contradicts Village policy.

Happy to go into these with more
detail it you may.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: No. I1"m sure all the
Commissioners read them prior to the meeting.

One question for you, Kelsey. You
made some changes i1In the definition section. Do
you want us to --

MS. FAWELL: Yes. Yeah.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: -- remove those?

MS. FAWELL: 1 think --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: They were well done and they
were straightforward, but 1 just know we haven"t
talked about them yet and | don"t know that we have
to talk about that much.

DIRECTOR VALONE: |If there are no objections
to them we can make a motion --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I don"t think there are --

DIRECTOR VALONE: -- related to acceptance --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: -- 1"m just trying clean it
up --

DIRECTOR VALONE: -- of the proposed -- yep.

MS. FAWELL: Yeah, they"re very general that
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they provide clarification on what commercial uses

have been created and modified as well as some
clarifications on the cannabis -- medical cannabis
definitions.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: And 1 know the commissioners
studied all that before we got here and 1 would
entertain a motion.

COMMISSIONER TURNER: So moved.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Second?

COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Second.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All those i1n favor?

(Chorus of ayes.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Opposed?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Motion passes.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So 1 think we just -- we
have had our motions along the way.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yeah.

DIRECTOR VALONE: The only thing that we would
need to do Is just get a motion to modify your
draft recommendation based on tonight"s meeting,
including the modifications to the markups.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: So moved.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Second?
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COMMISSIONER WINEGAR: Second.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All those i1n favor.

(Chorus of ayes.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Opposed?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Motion carries.

COMMISSIONER TURNER: Ryan®"s motion. Whose
second?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Steve.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: Food truck Steve.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: With that, 1 would entertain
a motion to close the public hearing section of the
meeting.

Anything else before the I do that?

DIRECTOR VALONE: Nuh-uh.

COMMISSIONER TURNER: Motion to close the
public hearing.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: Second.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All those i1n favor?

(Chorus of ayes.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Opposed?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Okay. We"re going to move

on to the others business section of the meeting.
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I would say 1Tt you have upcoming meetings or things
you wanted to warn us about, now would be the time.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Well, 1 think Pete has
something he would like to let us know.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Oh, #s 1t now?

It has been a pleasure serving with
you all. 1I"m getting kicked off.

DIRECTOR VALONE: No. No. Pete i1s actually
doing a huge service to us. We have lost our
chairman on liquor and he has agreed to go back to
liquor where he started and be our chairman there.
We have a newer commissioner --

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: Controlling the
liquor? Oh.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: I was on liquor for five
years before 1 was on this for 12 years and -- |
don"t know.

DIRECTOR VALONE: No. He"s really --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: It"s my -- you know, Peter
principle. 1°m way above where 1 belong.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Honestly, he is doing us a
huge favor. Liquor, like Plan Commission, does
things differently than our other commissions,

right? Like i1t looks at text amendments, it talks

www . ChimnrakCourtReporting.com

630.983.0030

Page 108 of 170



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

312.781.9111

Village of Western Springs Plan Commission Meeting

10/28/2025

108
about, like, a specific liquor license, right?

There are things that, like a planned development
that you reviewed, that liquor does, and so we
really appreciate him helping us out. It just took
us months to fill just a regular seat, and so the
chairman there is leaving after 12 years of being
the chairman, and so he i1s doing us a huge favor by
shifting, and we have somebody already lined up to
take over -- is that all right?

PRESIDENT RUDOLPH: Yeah.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Okay. So Jim Tyrrell has
offered to come back and be our chair starting
December 1, so 1t will switch over December 1. It
seems like we won"t have a November meeting, so --
and then we"ll be reaching out. It has been a
really long time --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Jim has been on this before
with your Plan, right?

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 think a few of you know --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Yeah, he was a trustee.

DIRECTOR VALONE: Yes. But I thought -- no
maybe i1t was Brumbaugh who was on when he was also
on. Right.

So, anyway, so he"s a former trustee.
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He also was the Chair before Pete --
CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Right. Right.
DIRECTOR VALONE: -- and so he has offered to

come back and help us out so we don"t have any
absences iIn the Plan Commission.

And then Kelsey and 1 will be
reaching out after the first of the year. It has
been a really long time since we have done, like, a
training workshop, and 1 think, you know, given
having this change, i1t"s time, you know, just to
kind of do that and be able to kind of sit, you
know, and talk through our DCO that"s older than
Kelsey and our standards, you know, and just do
some of that.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Sorry, Kelsey.

MS. FAWELL: Thank you.

DIRECTOR VALONE: We may bring on maybe the
American Planning Association, the Illinois chapter
to do some things. We"re probably going to have
some -- you know, some other things that we put
together. Anne will be there also to kind of talk
about kind of, like, procedural things and like,
you know, the law things, about public hearings and

letting -- you know --
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ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Keep those planners on

track.

DIRECTOR VALONE: So, anyway, so kind of stay
tuned for that, but we don"t have any other
applications at the moment.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Oh, good. Holidays are
coming, no one wants to meet.

DIRECTOR VALONE: 1 know. Well, my own
personal --

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Do you have any liquor
applications pending?

DIRECTOR VALONE: What?

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Does the Liquor
Commission --

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Any liquor pending right

now?

DIRECTOR VALONE: No.

CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Okay, good.

DIRECTOR VALONE: You want a little bit of a
break.

COMMISSIONER DEPROSPERIS: Immediate second
guessing.

COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Can we join the -- are

there public meetings?
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DIRECTOR VALONE: Oh --

ATTORNEY SKRODZKI: Yes. Yes.
DIRECTOR VALONE: There®s public comment, yes.
Oh, no.
COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Maybe we can go to that
and see how 1t goes.
DIRECTOR VALONE: 1711 make sure to send a
link for his Tirst meeting back.
ATTORNEY SKRODZKI1: Feel free to attend.
CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Thank you for that.
I would move on to Item F on the
agenda, adjournment, 1f there was a motion.
COMMISSIONER JOHANN: Motion to adjourn.
CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Second?
COMMISSIONER TURNER: Second.
CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: All in favor?
(Chorus of ayes.)
CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Opposed?
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN GLIMCO: Motion passes.
Thank you, everyone.
(Whereupon the meeting was

adjourned at 9:00 p.m.)
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I, Hailey M. Schoot, CSR, RPR, being

first duly sworn, on oath says that she i1s a court
reporter doing business iIn the State of Illinois;
and that she reported in shorthand the proceedings
of said meeting and that the foregoing iIs a true
and correct transcript of her shorthand notes so
taken as aforesaid, and contains the proceedings

given at said meeting.

Hailey Schoot, CSR, RPR " ¥ ¥
I11inois CSR License 084-004897
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Plan Commission
Village of Western Springs
Village Hall- Board Room
Thursday, March 19, 2026, 7:00 PM

Plan Commission - Present:

Commissioner DeProsperis

Commissioner Hanson

Commissioner Winegar

Chair Tyrrell

Village Manager Ellen Baer, Village Attorney Anne Skrodzki, Deputy Village Clerk Jill Izzo,
Community Development Director Heather Valone, Senior Planner Kelsey Fawell, Phil Green of
APA-IL and Jason Zawila of APA-IL were also in attendance.

Call to Order: Chair Tyrell called meeting to order at 7:09m.

Reading of Agenda: The agenda was read and accepted.

Approval of Minutes October 28, 2025: Trustee Tyrell stated he would be abstaining from a
vote as he was not on the Plan Commission at the time. Motion failed.

Commissioner Hanson arrived at 7:11pm.

Public Comment: There was no public comment.

Considerations: None.

Other Business: Plan Commissioner Training.

Phil Green and Jason Zawila, representatives of American Planning Association (APA) Illinois
Chapter to provide Plan Commissioner Training. The role’s of the commissioners, the Plan
Commission review process, findings of facts, meeting rules and procedures were among the
items discussed. Village Attorney Anne Skrodzki provided a brief overview of the meeting
procedures and ethic requirements. A training scenario was also held.

Adjournment: Chair Tyrell asked for a motion to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Hanson
made a motion and Commissioner Winegar seconded the motion. A voice vote was taken with

all Commissioners voting aye.

The meeting was adjourned at 9:33 p.m.
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(}/auﬂ/fés ¥4 | Plan Commission: June 18, 2026

AGENDA ITEME.1.

To: Plan Commission

From: Kelsey Fawell, Senior Planner, Heather Valone, AICP, Director of Community
Development

CC: Casey Biernacki, Deputy Village Manager, Ellen Baer, Village Manager, Jill 1zzo, Deputy
Village Clerk, Anne Skrodzki, Village Attorney

RE: Comprehensive Plan Update Workshop

Recommendation
None.

Summary

On January 26, 2026, the Village Board of Trustees authorized a vendor contract [LINK] with
Teska Associates, Inc ("Teska") to update the Village’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan. Please use
the link to access the memo distributed to the Board which provides additional background
information as well as the contract with Teska. Attachment 1 contains Teska's proposal.

A comprehensive plan is a community's long-term vision, guiding future growth and
development. It serves as a policy guide and advisory land use planning tool, outlining
community conditions, identifying goals and objectives, and providing guidance for
implementation. The Village’s current Comp Plan was adopted in February 2003 and is
available online here [LINK]. Per Section 10-3-6 of the Village’s Development Control Ordinance
the Plan Commission is tasked with preparing, recommending, and updating the
comprehensive plan, as well as assist the Village Board with the implementation and
completion of projects identified in the plan. As indicated in the Development Control
Ordinance, the Plan Commission will serve as the Steering Committee for this update, and will
receive regular updates from both Village staff and the Teska team.

Teska has been working on drafting the Village's existing conditions report for the plan, as well
as project branding. The report provides a current snapshot of Western Springs, using multiple
datasets to serve as the baseline for kicking off the visioning process, identifying needs and
setting goals. At the meeting, Teska will review the existing report and lead a workshop with
the Plan Commission to obtain feedback.

Attachment

1. Proposal from Teska and Associates, Inc.
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Financial Impact
N/a.

Recommended Motion
None.

Strategic Plan Alignhment

Community Planning and Economic Development.

File Attachments
1. Teska Proposal
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teska TESKA ASSOCIATES, INC.
IN COLLABORATION WITH
BAXTER & WOODMAN

NOVEMBER 3, 2025


Kelsey Fawell
Typewriter
Attachment 1.


teska

BUILDING COMMUNITY, CREATING PLACE

November 3, 2025

Village of Western Springs
Kelsey Fawell

Senior Planner

740 Hillgrove Avenue
Western Springs, IL 60558

Dear Ms. Fawell,

Teska Associates, in collaboration with Baxter & Woodman, is pleased to submit this proposal to prepare
the Village of Western Springs’ Comprehensive Plan Update. Our team knows that Western Springs is
exceptional in its community character and residents’ connection to the Village. These factors will make
updating the comprehensive plan an important, challenging, and fun effort to preserve and enhance the
Village in years to come.

To support the project, our team brings an understanding of planning, urban design, development, local
government, infrastructure, and transportation honed over decades of serving municipal clients. We also
bring an understanding of Western Springs developed over many years and multiple projects with the
community.

As with every assignment we take on, we will build on our experience to match the latest best practices
with Western Springs’ specific needs. When working with established clients, we are always looking
forward to best serve the community’s vision for the future and never proceeding based on preconceived
notions. This approach is keyed by a custom designed, and wide-reaching public engagement process

to ensure that the plan is consensus-based and reflective of a cross-section of stakeholders. Our
commitment to public input engagement ensures the plan is current, community oriented, and able to
provide confidence to decision makers that recommended actions reflect local needs.

We would very much welcome the opportunity to bring this combination of professional expertise,
familiarity with Western Springs, and application of effective public engagement to working with the
Village in defining a path for continued success. To that end, this proposal shares how our team can
address the needs and expectations conveyed in the Village's RFP. Thank you for the opportunity to submit
our credentials and approach to serving the community.

Sincerely,

Michael Blue, FAICP Andrew Dunham, AICP

Vice President of Planning Associate Planner

Teska Associates, Inc. Teska Associates, Inc.
MBlue@TeskaAssociates.com ADunham@TeskaAssociates.com
(847) 563-9722 (847) 881-8700

teska associatesinc

627 Grove Street, Evanston, ILG0201 office 847 869-2015 www. TeskaAssociates.com
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01| EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Executive Summary

Bringing a deep understanding of Western Springs, fresh and
innovative ideas and approaches, and a proven track record of
implementable, community-driven plans, Team Teska is uniquely
qualified to update the Western Springs Comprehensive Plan.

Teska has truly enjoyed working alongside the Village of Western Springs over the past 15 years. Our
work has been centered around the thriving downtown, crafting the 2011 Downtown Redevelopment
Plan, assisting with creation of TIF districts, review of specific development proposals, and assisting
with signage and streetscape efforts. One of our fondest memories was holding a pop-up space next
to Kirschbaum's bakery while working on the downtown plan. The love and compassion residents have
for the community and their desire to maintain Western Spring's small town feel and quality of life came
through loud and clear. They were at once supportive of ideas they liked, and not afraid to politely
express concerns with elements that they did not feel were appropriate. That's exactly the type of input
that was needed, and the type of input out team is confident we can secure in this new comprehensive
planning effort.

Firm Profile & Qualifications

Over its 50-year history, Teska has always adapted to new, creative and community focused means
of community building and place making. Our public engagement and technical analysis identify a
community’s vision so that plan recommendations can support it through a framework of achievable
goals, strategies, and policies. With a broad range of experienced professionals in planning, urban
design, and economic development, Teska understands the realities of development, community, and
local government and works within those frameworks to achieve implementation-ready plans.

As part of Team Teska, Baxter & Woodman shares the focus of blending the innovative with the
practical. From multimodal planning and engineering to smart city infrastructure, Baxter & Woodman will
support Teska in evaluating the feasibility of the community’s transportation and sustainability vision and
providing a playbook for securing funding to put the plan in motion.

Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal p.5
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Experience

Team Teska's depth and breadth of work in Chicagoland and beyond affords our team a well founded
understanding of the challenges and opportunities faced by communities in the region. This experience
has been applied directly in various projects in collaboration with the Village of Western Springs, such as
the 2014 Downtown Plan, TIF District, 2025 Downtown Market Assessment, and various infrastructure
projects. This experience will allow our team to hit the ground running, and begin building toward solid
action plans in an efficient and cost-effective manner.

Teska has completed numerous comprehensive plans for peer communities, such as La Grange,
Glencoe, Wilmette, and other historic railroad-based communities, with each process centering on
public engagement and providing a unique, tailored action plan suited to each community’s needs.

Further, Teska understands that although Western Springs has similarities to other communities across
the region, it shines with a distinct identity and that its residents do not want to simply “copy” what its
neighbors are doing. Rather, Western Springs residents seek opportunities to enhance the community
without losing the essential traits that make it attractive and special.

See the Experience section on page 22 for project examples and references.

p.6 Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal
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Approach

Teska proposes a twelve-month process to complete the Village of Western Springs Comprehensive
Plan Update. In that timeframe the consultant team to apply a tailored process focused on broad-
ranging engagement and technical analysis to establish effective land use, urban design, infrastructure,
and economic development strategies. Through ongoing project management with Village staff, Team
Teska will bring about delivery of a high-quality product on time and within budget.

This proposed scope of services will contain four primary phases:

« Phase One: Kick-off and Existing Conditions. A strong foundation of public input, data, and
community understanding is a prerequisite for the development of a plan truly tailored to Western
Springs. To accomplish this, the Phase will outline a public engagement program for the plan, and
result in an existing conditions report (with Village-wide market assessment) to clearly convey local
context for the Village's planning effort.

» Phase Two: Public Engagement & Visioning. Though public engagement is the second phase of
the proposed scope, opportunities for in-person and virtual engagement are built into every step of
the planning process and provide residents with opportunities to checkpoint and opine throughout.
Tools to be applied include in creating a vision for the Village include a branded project website
with comment map, a pop-up event to build buzz around the plan, two open houses (one for
defining the vision and one to review draft recommendations), @ community workshop focused on
key commercial areas, and stakeholder interviews.

« Phase Three: Draft Plan. Draft recommendations will be prepared for key planning topics. Each
of these will be refined through workshops with Village staff, the Steering Committee and the
community. Key topic areas include:

- Land Use & Subareas

+ Economic Development & Housing
+ Community Character

+  Multi-modal Transportation

+ Sustainability

» Phase Four: Final Plan & Adoption. Following feedback and refinement of draft recommendations,
a draft final plan document will be created. This final document will be presented for public hearing
and Village Board adoption.

See page 32 for proposed project approach, scope, and schedule.

Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal p.7
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Team Overview

Our team brings together diligent, experienced planning practitioners
with a proven track record of completing creative, community-
minded, and implementable plans. Details about our team, each firm’s
role on this project, and relevant experiences follow.

ma Teska Associates, Inc. is a full-service planning and urban design

practice that delivers innovative solutions backed by 50 years of
expertise. Teska will be the lead consultant on this project, serving
as project manager, leading land use strategy and market analysis

Community Character « Land Use as well as creating and executing an inclusive public engagement
Planning strategy. Teska will utilize its past experience in Western Springs to

provide a holistic, data-driven plan that's tailored to Village needs.

Project Management - Economic
Development - Engagement -

Baxter & Woodman is a forward-thinking infrastructure planning,
design, and construction firm that recently completed the Village of

BAXTE OODMAN Western Springs’ Comprehensive Capital Improvement Plan. With a

deep knowledge of the community and region, Baxter & Woodman's

) expertise involves the development of innovative, yet implementable
Multi-Modal . . . .

infrastructure plans and projects. Baxter & Woodman will continue
identifying funding sources for the Village's transportation
improvements including STP, ITEP, TAP, CMAQ, and DCEQO, some
of which we are already utilizing for the Village’s transportation
projects.

Consulting Engineers

Full firm profiles are included on
the following pages >>

Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal p.9
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BUILDING RELATIONSHIPS

We invest in long-term client-consultant
relationships, built on listening intently to

client needs, maintaining clear and frequent
communication, providing timely and responsive
service, and exceeding expectations.

CREATING LIVABLE COMMUNITIES

Our team is passionate about creating livable,
sustainable communities; places with strong and
resilient economies, walkable and safe streets for
all users, and vibrant venues for people to gather
and interact with neighbors.

Big ideas matter. So do the small details
and smart moves that bring projects, places
& communities to life.

For 50 years, Teska has been a trusted advisor - partnering with
public and private sector clients to tackle complex challenges, spark
meaningful change, and shape resilient places that bring people e 4,
together. From planning and community engagement to site design ;
and economic development, Teska's multidisciplinary team brings big
ideas, sharp detail, and passion. Together we connect the dots, helping
our clients and partners move from “what if” to “what’s next.”
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GOING THE EXTRA MILE

We know that our success is based on the

quality of our service. At Teska, quality service is
based on responsiveness, anticipation of needs,
maintaining flexibility, and innovative and efficient
problem solving.

HONEST ANSWERS TO TOUGH QUESTIONS

Teska provides solutions that are creative and
realistic. We sometimes have to tell a client that,
in our opinion, an idea won't work - but that is
quickly followed by solutions that can work and
consensus building to gain support.

Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal
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Baxter & Woodman, Inc.

Foundedin 1946, Baxter & Woodman, Inc. provides consulting
engineering and technology services to municipalities, We dare

Infrastructure planning,

state agencies, county governments, and sanitary districts
throughout Florida, lllinois, Wisconsin, and Texas. Dedicated . 5
to promoting a sustainable future, our staff of more than dGSlgn, and ConStrUCtlon.
440 talented engineers, surveyors, technicians, and support
personnel incorporates innovative techniques along with
tried and true processes.

Water/Wastewater, Roads/Highways, Water
Resources/Stormwater, Technology

Baxter & Woodman provides planning, design, construction and technology services for water, wastewater,
stormwater and transportation facilities for municipalities, counties and state agencies and more.
Environmental, geographic information systems (GIS), water and wastewater operations, and advanced
technology needs complement the firm's civil engineering expertise. The company has several subsidiaries
including ones focused on Natural Resources, Municipal Technology, and Design-Build project delivery.

Services Provided In-House

Baxter & Woodman has provided engineering services to more than 500 communities, counties, and sanitary
districts during our 79 years of business. The strength of the Baxter & Woodman team comes from the
cohesive and cooperative work effort gained from having expertise in numerous disciplines. We offer a full
range of municipal services from project inception to construction close-out. All necessary engineering
services are provided in-house with the exception of geotechnical engineering.

Regional Offices

Baxter & Woodman'’s 17 regional offices provides our clients with local presence and responsive service. Our
team offers services that stretch well beyond typical engineering consulting. We are committed to building
community value with each and every project we complete.

ILLINOIS FLORIDA
Bannockburn Green Cove Springs
Chicago Orlando

Crystal Lake St. Augustine
Marengo West Palm Beach
Mokena! TEXAS
Napgrwlle Cedar Park
ey Houston
WISCONSIN Katy

Burlington

Janesville

Milwaukee

Baxter & Woodman, Inc. Baxter & Woodman, Inc. =1
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Team Resumes

This section introduces the people behind the project—the dedicated
professionals who bring their experience, creativity, and passion. You’ll find
details on our team’s individual roles and the unique expertise each member
offers to ensure a creative and inclusive comprehensive plan process.

MICHAEL BLUE, FAICP
Project Manager

Michael will serve as Project
Manager, overseeing all aspects of
the plan

JODI MARIANO, PLA
Design Lead

Jodi will advise on urban design
and placemaking related strategies

ANDREW DUNHAM, AICP
Planning Lead

Andrew will lead land use planning
and engagement efforts and will be
the Village's primary contact

KAMERIA NICHOLS-HAZZIEZ
Economic Development Specialist

Kameria will lead market analysis,
economic development, and real
estate components of the plan

EMMA SWANSON
Project Planner

Emma will provide technical
support for all plan elements

SCOTT GOLDSTEIN, FAICP, LEED AP
Economic Development Advisor

Scott will advise market study and
economic development elements

DANNY O’BRIAN, PLA
Land Planner

Danny will advise subarea-specific
development strategies

BAXTE OODMAN

Consulting Engineers

JONATHAN B. TRENT, PE
Project Manager

Jonathan will lead transportation
and infrastructure strategy

JACKSON MARVEL
GIS/Urban Planner

Jackson will assist with
transportation and infrastructure
strategy

p.12 Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal
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Michael
Blue raice

VICE PRESIDENT OF PLANNING

Michael Blue, FAICP is a seasoned planning professional with over 30 years of experience across the public
and private sectors. He began his career as a consultant, working on comprehensive plans, land use strategies,
economic impact assessments, and public engagement initiatives. He later spent 15 years in the public

sector as a community development department manager, overseeing development approvals, economic
development, commission processes, and municipal operations. Now back in consulting, Michael draws on his
broad experience to deliver planning solutions that balance diverse stakeholder needs and expectations.

» Education + Relevant Project Experience
University of lllinois Comprehensive Plans
Master of Urban Planning Role: Project Manager
Bachelor of Urban Planning Michael has managed comprehensive plans for lllinois communities including

La Grange, Shorewood, Lincolnshire, Glencoe, Lake in the Hills, Lake Bluff,
. v e Wilmette, Rolling Meadows, Des Plaines, and Mokena. He has also managed
» Professional Affiliations comprehensive plans for Urbandale and West Des Moines, IA, and Dublin, OH.

Fellow, American Institute of
Certified Planners (FAICP) Downtown & Commercial Area Planning

Role: Project Manager

. Michael prepared downtown, business district and corridor plans, including in
Lambda Alpha Economics Winnetka, Libertyville, Northfield, Des Plaines, Kenilworth, River Forest, and
Society Melrose Park, IL and Toledo, OH. He also led downtown planning projects while
working for Mount Prospect and Highland Park.

American Planning Association

» Previous Experience Strategic and Economic Development Planning

City of Highland Park, IL Role: Project Manager

Director of Community Michael prepared a Strategic Plan for Warrenville, IL that focused on economic
Development development and addressed community character, natural resources, and public
Village of Mount Prospect, IL services. As follow-up, prepared the Southwest District Plan for the City, which
Deputy Community ! along with a TIF has supported new development in the area. He also prepared

Development Director the first Strategic Plan for Round Lake, IL and a recent update.

Development Ordinances
Role: Project Manager

Michael has drafted zoning ordinance updates for Roselle, Rolling Meadows,
Lockport, Roselle, Woodridge, Bourbonnais, Wood Dale, Elk Grove Village, and
Des Plaines, IL, and Elkhorn, WI. He also worked with Edwardsville staff to update
deficient code elements including major update to I1-55 Interchange District

and with Champaign to revise select commercial and residential zoning districts
to facilitate desired development forms. Michael also drafted a zoning district
adopted jointly by Mattoon and Charleston, IL, to facilitate development in the
corridor between the communities (the district won an APA IL Award)

Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal p. 13
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Y

Mariano ria

VICE PRESIDENT OF DESIGN

Jodi Mariano, PLA has led Teska’s urban design practice for 20+ years. Her work focuses on community
engagement designed to guide the planning and development of public spaces, such as streetscapes,
parks and plazas. Jodi has directed public processes resulting in useful master plans, successful funding
applications and dynamic implementation projects.

» Education

University of lllinois Chicago
Master of Architecture

University of lllinois Champaign
Bachelor of Landscape
Architecture

» Certifications

State of lllinois, Registered
Landscape Architect, License
No. 157-001062

CLARB, Certified Landscape
Architect, No. 4570

» Professional Affiliations

Member, American Society of
Landscape Architects

Past Instructor, Joseph
Regenstein, Jr. School, Chicago
Botanic Gardens

» Relevant Project Experience

Streetscapes and Public Places
Role: Designer

Conducted public outreach programs, urban design strategy and final
streetscape design plans for Fountain Square Plaza, Sherman Plaza, Maple
Avenue and Chicago Avenue Streetscapes (Evanston); Downtown Wilmette
Streetscape, including Ouilmette Alley, Veterans Park and Village Green
(Wilmette); EIm Street, Hubbard Woods, Indian Hill Business Districts
(Winnetka); Tudor Court Streetscape and Glencoe Village Hall (Glencoe);
Downtown Lake Bluff Streetscape Master Plan and Scranton Avenue (Lake
Bluff); Downtown Round Lake Streetscape Plan (Round Lake); Schuyler
Avenue Streetscape (Kankakee); State Street Streetscape (Lockport); Lemont
Downtown and |+M Canal Corridor (Lemont); Ridge-Calumet Streetscape
(Munster, IN)

Conducted public outreach / urban design for the Lincoln Square Master
Plan. Provided outreach and landscape architecture for Chicago Dept of
Transportation (CDOT), including North Lincoln Avenue / Ainslie Arts Plaza;
Lincoln Square Brown Line Station Area; and Back of the Yards 47th / Ashland
Streetscape and Plaza assignments.

Corridors and Urban Design Guidelines

Role: Designer

Participated in and led teams of engineers, architects and economic
development consultants for corridor assignments including North Avenue
Corridor (RTA); Ridgeland Avenue Corridor (RTA); 95th Street Corridor (CMAP);
and Southwest Highway Corridor (Oak Lawn). Other corridor development
projects include Old McHenry Road (Lake Zurich / Hawthorn Woods); Roosevelt
Road (Broadview); St Charles Road (Berkeley); Palatine Road / Rand Road /
Arlington Heights Road (Arlington Heights); and Milwaukee Avenue Corridor
(Prospect Heights).

Infrastructure Aesthetic Design

Role: Designer

Prepared concept through bid phase documentation for Washington Street
underpass (Grayslake), Streamwood Bike Trail and Bridge (Streamwood),
Calumet Avenue Bike Bridge (Hammond, IN).

Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal
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Andrew
! Dunham aicr

ASSOCIATE PLANNER

Andrew Dunham, AICP specializes in urban design, with a focus on community engagement and
putting ideas to paper throughout the planning process. Skilled at a variety of communication tools
and technologies, Andy shapes vibrant multimedia dialogues with clients. From hand drawn sketches
to modeling and mapping, he demystifies data and helps communities visualize their collective goals.

* Education

Georgia Institute of Technology
Master of City & Regional
Planning

University of lllinois
Bachelor of Urban Planning

» Certifications

American Institute of Certified
Planners (AICP)

» Professional Affiliations
American Planning Association

Relevant Project Experience

Lake in the Hills Comprehensive Plan - Lake in the Hills, IL

Role: Lead Planner

Modeled subarea concepts and drafted tailored plan recommendations for Lake
in the Hills

Lake Bluff Comprehensive Plan - Lake Bluff, IL
Role: Lead Planner

Modeled subarea concepts and drafted tailored plan recommendations for Lake
Bluff

Aspire Lincolnshire Comprehensive Plan « Lincolnshire, IL

Role: Lead Planner

Modeled subarea concepts and drafted tailored plan recommendations for
Lincolnshire

Mount Sterling Long Range Strategic Plan - Mount Sterling, IL

Role: Lead Planner

Prepared market research, drafted plan concepts, and created compelling
graphics in support of a strategic plan for a small, rural community with a
historic main street

Jasper Street Great Streets, Great Neighborhoods Plan - Decatur, IL

Role: Project Planner

Assisted with the public outreach strategy and execution for a neighborhood
plan in Decatur, lllinois

Major Taylor Trail Plan- Chicago, IL

Role: Project Planner

Supported a market study and the preparation of site maps for a green multi-
modal trail through Chicago’s south side

Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal p. 15
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Kameria Nichols-Hazziez conducts market analysis and undertakes economic development studies for
communities throughout the Chicago region and Illinois. This includes market research, data analysis, and
engagement with local communities to help position the community and attract economic and housing
investment.

Education ¢ Relevant Project Experience
University of Wisconsin Downtown Des Plaines Economic Development Strategy - Des Plaines, IL
B.B.A Real Estate and Urban Role: Market Analyst
Land Economics Assisted with a detailed market analysis for the downtown area of Des Plaines in
Certificate, Public Policy support of a broader economic development strategy in the area

South Halsted Corridor Plan « Chicago, IL
Professional Affiliations Role: Analyst
POSSE Conducted a market study for the South Halsted corridor area on Chicago'’s

Far South Side. Study included assessing the potential of housing, retail, and
WREAA | Wisconsin Real Estate industrial uses

Alumni Association

Urban Land Institute Western Springs Market Assessment « Western Springs, IL

Role: Market Analyst

Drafted a market assessment for the downtown area of Western Springs; study
included findings across the retail, office, and housing markets

The Pinnacle - Niles, IL

Role: Analyst

Conducted a TIF analysis and refined the Applicant’s pro forma for a proposed
mixed-use project in Niles, IL

Good Kids Mad City Community Center - Chicago, IL
Role: Market Analyst

Conducted a market study in support of a potential community center in the
West Englewood neighborhood of Chicago

SSA 27 Reconstitution
Role: Analyst

Supported the reconstitution of SSA 27 in the Lakeview neighborhood of
Chicago
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-I Emma
-
Swanson

y
ASSOCIATE PLANNER

w -

Emma Swanson possesses wide range of planning skills ranging from data analysis to engagement to
mapping in order to create plans tailored to the unique characteristics of their community. She specializes in
the development of project branding, outreach materials, and plan design and formatting to imbue each plan
with the look and feel of the community which it serves.

Education ¢ Relevant Project Experience

DePaul University La Grange Forward Comprehensive Plan - La Grange, IL

M.A. Sustainable Urban Role: Planner

Development Served as the project planner leading branding, community engagement,
B.A. Environmental Studies and existing conditions analysis, mapping, writing, and plan design efforts
Geography

. ) Lockport Comprehensive Plan « Lockport, IL
Certificate, Geographic Role: Planner

Information Systems Assisted in key plan roles, such as mapping, writing, and plan design

. v e Enhance Downtown Morris Master Plan « Morris, IL

Professional Affiliations Role: Planner

American Planning Association Served as project planner leading branding, engagement, mapping, writing, and
plan design efforts

Your Future, Your Frankfort 2040 Comprehensive Plan Update « Frankfort, IL
Role: Planner

Served as project planner leading branding, engagement, mapping, writing, and
plan design efforts

Evanston Accessory Dwelling Unit (ADU) Guidelines
Role: Designer

Assisted in the preparation of a user friendly document through the creation of
infographics and document design.

Wicker Park Bucktown SSA #33 Annual Reports (2019-2021)
Role: Designer
Assisted in the creation of engaging and informative annual report documents.
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( |

Scott
Goldstein raicp, Leep ap

PRESIDENT

Scott Goldstein, FAICP, LEED AP brings over twenty-five years of experience in community development,
planning, housing, neighborhood redevelopment, fiscal analysis, civic engagement, and data analysis. He
has led neighborhood plans, downtown and business district plans and comprehensive plans for a variety
of urban, suburban and rural communities. Scott focuses on an asset-based approach to community

development and reinvestment.

Education

Columbia University
Master of Science in Urban
Planning

Tufts University
Bachelor of Arts in History of Art &
Architecture and Political Science

Professional Affiliations

Fellow, American Institute of
Certified Planners (FAICP)

LEED Accredited Professional

Urban Land Institute Chicago
Chair, 2022-2024 and Chair of
Mission Advancement, 2020-2021

American Planning Association

Faculty Lecturer

Northwestern University
Global Policy Lab, Master's in Public
Policy and Administration

Previous Experience

Metropolitan Planning Council
Vice President of Policy and
Planning

Awards

APA IL: Decatur Jasper
Street Roadmap, Near North
Neighborhood, Wicker Park
Bucktown Master Plan

APA NC: Carrboro Comprehensive
Plan, Greensboro Sustainability Plan

» Relevant Project Experience

Comprehensive Plans
Role: Project Manager

Scott has led comprehensive plans for communities of various sizes around the
country, linking market analysis, community engagement and creative design for
Carrboro and Kernersville (NC), and Carpentersville, Lake Villa, Leyden Township
and Sauk Village (IL)

Housing and Land Banks
Role: Project Manager

Scott provides technical assistance for land banks on behalf of the lllinois Housing
Development Authority, for which IHDA received a National Council of State
Housing Agencies Award for the TA program. He has also conducted housing
studies for lllinois Attorney General (various communities across lllinois), Robbins,
Housing Opportunities Development Corporation (Deerfield, IL), Altgeld Gardens
(Chicago IL), City of Decatur (IL), Evansville (IN), Minneapolis and St. Paul (MN),
and Greensboro (NC)

Neighborhood Revitalization Plans
Role: Project Manager

Scott combines community engagement with data analytics to develop plans,
designs and programs that will advance community goals, including for Des
Plaines (IL); Austin, Belmont Cragin, Logan Square and Chicago Lawn, Chicago
(IL); Dubugue (IA); Evansville (IN); Kalamazoo (MI); Portland (OR); Osceola
County (FL); Clarksville (TN)' Decatur and Milledgeville (GA); and Greensboro
(NC)

Economic Development Plans

Role: Project Manager

Scott has developed tailored economic development plans for: Downtown Des
Plaines, South Chicago Heights, and Calumet City (IL), Chatham and Hermosa
(Chicago), Hammond (IN), Madison (W), and S. EIm (Greensboro)

Market and Fiscal Studies

Role: Project Manager

Scott leverages his market expertise to conduct market and fiscal studies for
municipalities including: Glenview, Skokie, and Willowbrook (IL) and Dubuque (IA).
He also serves private clients and developers in lllinois including: Austin Coming
Together and DL3 (Chicago), I-394 Enterprise Community, Centennial (Hawthorn
Mall and Fox Valley Mall residential conversion), Edward R. James Partners,
Lexington Homes, Pulte, Trammel Crow, Compass Arena, and Nextstar
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Danny
O’Brianria

% W PRINCIPAL

Danny O’Brian, PLA employs the design process and the principles of landscape design to
discover creative and thoughtful solutions for every scale of project. He believes well planned
landscapes are dynamic, alive, and ever-changing. Danny has worked on projects ranging from
land planning to residential and mixed used developments in Illinois, Wisconsin, and Indiana.

+ Education + Relevant Project Experience
Ball State University Site Planning
Bachelor of Landscape Role: Designer
Architecture Planned sites for residential and mixed use developments including the Lake

Country Village subdivision (Summit, W1), Sterling Place (Northbrook, IL),

¢ Certifications Parkside at Glenview (Glenview, IL), and Harborview Station (Michigan City,

State of Illinois, Registered IN). Danny has also planned sites for senior living communities including
Landscape Architect | License Oak Trace (Downer's Grove, IL), King-Bruwaert House (Burr Ridge, IL) and the
No. 157.001508 Fields at Three Pillars (Dousman, W1).

Land Planning
Role: Designer

Developed land plans for residential communities including Lake Kai
(Michigan City, IN) and Green Acres (Northbrook, IL), as well as mixed-use sites
including the multiphased Pabst 59 Development (Oconomowoc, IL) and the
135-acre Herrling Property (Madison, W1).

Landscape Plans

Role: Designer

Prepared landscape plans for hospitals and headquarters in Illinois, including
Endeavor Health (Skokie and Highland Park) and the Northshore Water
Reclamation District (Gurnee).

Western Springs Comprehensive Plan |Proposal p. 19
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Jonathan B. Trent, PE
Project Manager

Jon is a Transportation Engineer with design and construction experience in various
roadway and infrastructure projects. His expertise includes annual street
maintenance programs, roadway rehabilitation and reconstruction projects, and
improvements of water main, storm sewer, and sanitary sewer infrastructure. Jon’s
practical perspective, attention to detail, and work ethic make him a valuable asset
to your project.

REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS

Western Springs, IL

Comprehensive Capital Improvement Plan

Roadway lead for the Village’s Comprehensive Capital Improvement Plan to obtain a
complete understanding of the Village’s infrastructure focusing on GIS and asset

EDUCATION management principles. Key planning elements included infrastructure risk analysis;
B.S., Civil Engineering roadway, streetscape and sidewalk analysis; Village property analysis; street lighting
Bradley University, 2010 and fiber optic analysis; and extensive public engagement activities.

Joined Firm in 2011 Western Springs, IL
Comprehensive Capital Improvement Plan

Years of Experience: 15 Project Manager for the Village’s Burlington Avenue Streetscape project. Project
consisted of adding decorative outdoor restaurant seating and crosswalk

REGISTRATIONS improvements along the Village’s downtown area. An additional mid-block raised
Licensed Professional crosswalk was added for better access to/from the Metra train station. Additional
Engineer: lllinois improvements included interim streetscape and lighting improvements. The project

was fast-tracked for completion ahead of the road resurfacing project.

ASSOCIATIONS
American Public Works South Elgin, IL
Association — City Branch 2017 MFT Downtown Streetscape and Utility Improvements
Publicity & Communications Co- Project Engineer responsible for the preparation of plans, cost estimate,
Chair, 2015-2018 specifications, and contract bid documents for 1.9 miles of roadways within the
Secretary, 2018-2020 Village. Work included water main replacement, storm sewer construction, sanitary

Treasurer, 2020-2023

; sewer spot repairs, utility relocations, tree removal, rock excavation, HMA pavement
President, 2023-Present

widening and reconstruction including new curb & gutter, new sidewalk with
decorative brick, and new street lighting. Design of the project included IDOT
approval for MFT funding, storm sewer modeling, wetland delineation, and IEPA
permitting. The project won a project award from the American Public Works
Association (APWA) Fox Valley Branch for “Transportation — Less than S5 Million”.

American Public Works
Association — PWX 2024
Special Events Committee Co-Chair

Glenview, IL

Willow Road Multi-Use Path

Prepared Phase | Project Development Report for IDOT and Congestion Mitigation
and Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ). Phase | improvements consist of a 10’ wide
concrete path within IDOT right-of-way, approximately 1 mile in length.

BAXTER ,\WOODMAN

BAXTERWOODMAN.COM
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Jackson Marvel
GIS/Urban Planner

Jackson has extensive experience in multiple planning projects, transportation
initiatives, and community studies. He has spent his time executing transportation
related projects which include pedestrian and bicyclist safety studies, thoroughfare
master plans, corridor studies, and trails planning. Jackson has served as deputy
project manager throughout multiple community planning initiatives, as well as
facilitated public engagement efforts, and coordination with council members,
commissioners, and city leaders. His experience has gained him technical knowledge
in innovative roadway and transportation initiatives. Jackson has advised numerous
cities and communities in planning for streetscape designs, context-sensitive
solutions, urban design, road diets, intersection safety, vision zero initiatives, and
right-of-way repurposing.

REPRESENTATIVE PROJECTS

Brownsville, TX*

EDUCATION Sidewalk and Trails Master Plan (2021)
B.A., Urban Planning and Jackson helped plan for the improvement and build-out of City sidewalks, trails, and
Development, Ball State bicycle lanes to help develop a city-wide system of interconnected mobility options.
University, 2020 Jackson and staff conducted detailed inventories and assessment of all city trails by

way of bicycle, assessed access to schools, and conducted safety crossing
assessments at all trail intersections. Jackson coordinated with local bicycle shops
Years Experience: 4 and businesses to assist in multiple public engagement events and to promote a
community survey. The Sidewalks and Trails master plan proposes over 100 miles of
sidewalks, recreational trails, bicycle lanes, and protected cycle tracks. In addition,

Joined Firm in 2023

ASSOCIATIONS . L .

. . L. the Master Plan notes locations where connectivity should be improved and where
American Planning Association .
(APA) infrastructure should be updated, such as push-buttons, ADA crosswalk ramps,

lighting, and signage.
Houston American Planning
Association (HAPA) Brownsville, TX*
West Rail Trail Extension Study (2022)
Jackson, as lead planner, coordinated with the City of Brownsville to conduct an
alignment study for extending the West Rail Trail along a former rail corridor into
Downtown Brownsville. Jackson conducted existing conditions assessments,
environmental reviews, land-use analysis, and assessed historical maps and
documents to understand the corridor. Jackson and staff proposed three alternative
alignments, along with crossing improvements, connections to other active
transportation facilities, signage and wayfinding locations, and trailhead locations. In
addition, lands adjacent to the proposed alignments were identified for the
development potential of city facilities, urban-style housing, trailheads, parkland, and
also the restoration of the Warehouse Depot building.

AWARDS
GOLD — 2022 APA
Transportation Award, for the
2021 Brownsville Sidewalk and
Trails Master Plan

League City, TX*

Mountain Bike Master Plan (2021)

Jackson helped the City of League City with establishing the City’s first panning
document regarding mountain bike trails, user agreements, and trail design. The
Master Plan included engagement feedback from public meetings with residents
and existing user groups to help identify desirable locations for mountain bike
facilities and included a detailed design and safety guide.

BAXTER \WOODMAN

*While working for others BAXTERWOODMAN.COM
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Experience Overview

Team Teska has extensive experience in Western Springs and within
its peer communities. This section outlines previous planning and
engineering work performed by Teska and Baxter & Woodman,
including project information and references.

Teska Associates, Inc. is rooted in the Chicagoland area and deeply familiar with the planning
intricacies and market realities faced by local governments. This depth of experience is
evident through its broad portfolio of planning, design, zoning, and market analytics projects
undertaken in the region and in Western Springs itself. This section provides an overview of
relevant and recent work in the Village and peer communities in the region as well as in-depth
project examples that highlight important details of each project and process.

Similarly, Baxter & Woodman have assisted communities across the region in engineering,
transportation, and environmental work, both large and small. Teska and Baxter & Woodman
have a history of collaboration and meeting the objectives and needs of client communities
in a holistic manner.

Project experience & references are
' included on the following pages >>
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Relevant Experience

This section details Team Teska’s projects that are relevant to the Village of
Western Springs, including work in peer communities, within the Village, or work
pertaining the key plan tasks outlined in the RFP.

teska

LAKE BLUFF COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
Completed 2025

Budget: $100,000

Contact: Drew Irvin, Village Administrator, Village of
Lake BIuff | dirvin@lakebluff.org | 847-234-0774

LA GRANGE FORWARD COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
Completed 2024

Budget: $195,000

Contact: Charity Jones, Community Development
Director, Village of La Grange | cjones@lagrangeil.gov
| 708-579-2320

ALL IN, GLENCOE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN
Completed 2024

Budget: $100,000

Contact: Phil Kiraly, Village Manager, Village of
Glencoe | pkiraly@villageofglencoe.org | 847-461-1101

WESTERN SPRINGS DOWNTOWN MARKET
ASSESSMENT
Completed 2025

Budget: $30,000

LAKE IN THE HILLS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN*
Completed 2025

Budget: $137,000

Contact: John Svalenka, AICP, Director of
Community Development, Village of Lake in the Hills
| jsvalenka@lith.org | 847-960-7441

BAXTE OODMAN

Consulting Engineers

CARPENTERSVILLE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT
PLAN UPDATE
Completed 2022

Budget: $30,000 (B&W portion)

Contact: Kevin Gray, Director of Public Works
and Engineering, Village of Carpentersville |
kgray@cville.org | 224-293-1613

WESTERN SPRINGS COMPREHENSIVE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN
Completed 2025

Budget: $330,600

*Project completed in collaboration with Baxter & Woodman

Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal
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FIRM ROLE:
Lead Firm

SCOPE OF WORK:
Comprehensive Planning
Public Engagement
Subarea/Corridor Planning
Urban Design
Sustainability

KEY PERSONNEL:

Michael Blue, FAICP
Andrew Dunham, AICP

Lake Bluff
Comprehensive Plan
LAKE BLUFF, IL

Identifying a design-focused, ecological, and community-
led framework for Lake Bluff’s next twenty years

PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS:
« Developed 20 fundamental planning goals through comprehensive in-
person and online engagement that tied each recommendation to the
community vision

+ Conducted community visioning to inform seven key subarea plans

+ Built on past placemaking efforts to create recommendations for
continued quality of life enhancements

+ Incorporated a detailed glossary to demystify planning terms

Long time partners in planning and urban design, Teska and the Village of
Lake Bluff seized the comprehensive planning process as an opportunity
to reevaluate community priorities and update the community’s vision.
Teska's familiarity with the community helped the team ask the right
questions regarding development, community character, transportation,
and sustainability, ultimately leading to a truly “Lake Bluff” plan. Teska has
since aided in implementation, assisting in creating design guidelines for
key development sites, developing cohesive a streetscape, and convening
stakeholders for placemaking improvements.
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FIRM ROLE:
Lead Firm

SERVICES PROVIDED:

Comprehensive Planning
Public Engagement
Subarea Planning

KEY PERSONNEL:

Michael Blue, FAICP
Francesca Lawrence, AICP
Emma Swanson

La Grange Forward
Comprehensive Plan
LA GRANGE, IL

A collaborative planning process and collective community
vision leads the Village forward.

PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS:
+ Planning focused on three key districts around La Grange's downtown
commuter train stations and nearby areas
+ Collaborative process included workshops with the Village Board and
commissions, three community workshops, and several pop-up events
« Recommendations provide direction for updating the zoning ordinance

The Plan serves as a long-term guide for Village decision-making related to
public policy, development, and resource allocation. Rooted in community
vision and goals, the Comprehensive Plan outlines targeted actions and
strategies organized by geography (e.g., downtown, industrial areas) and
topic (e.g., land use, sustainability). Building on previous planning efforts and
informed by extensive outreach and analysis, it provides a framework for
coordinated and consistent community action over the next 10 to 15 years.

“Our downtown area is great, the shops and restaurants
are great. Let’s continue to recruit and attract five-star
businesses to our town.”

Resident comment provided via the interactive Ideas Wall on the project website.
Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal

Page 142 of 170



FIRM ROLE:
Sole Firm

SCOPE OF WORK:

Comprehensive Planning
Public Engagement

KEY PERSONNEL:

Francesca Lawrence, AICP
Lee Brown, FAICP

All In, Glencoe
Comprehensive Plan
GLENCOE, IL

Creating a web-based guidebook for the future through
extensive community visioning

PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS:
+ Online plan provides an accessible, user-friendly, updatable format
+ Organized around five “big ideas” and a future land use chapter
- Engagement events were in partnership with local institutions

+ Planning process with monthly input from the Plan Commission and
regular engagement with other Village boards and public agencies

Building on Teska and the Village of Glencoe’s long-standing relationship,
All In, Glencoe emphasized wide-reaching community engagement, from
formal and informal events to substantial input received from Village boards
and commissions. The process was intentional, transparent, and responsive
to the many voices of the community. The product is a web-based plan that
concisely communicates the vision and implementation priorities.

“With Teska’s support, we developed an interactive plan
designed to live online and be easily updated to absorb new
ideas and remain relevant as our community evolves.”

Bruce Huvard, Village of Glencoe Plan Commission Chair
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FIRM ROLE:
Lead

SERVICES PROVIDED:

Market Assessment
Public Engagement

KEY PERSONNEL:

Michael Blue, FAICP
Andrew Dunham, AICP
Kameria Nichols-Hazziez

Western Springs Downtown
Market Assessment

WESTERN SPRINGS, IL

Evaluating market conditions and local competitive
alignment to identify opportunities for enhancing
Downtown’s unique position in the community and region.

PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS:
+ Conducted detailed stakeholder interviews with business owners in the
community to understand challenges and opportunities
+ Prepared a survey for customers of the Downtown to better understand
shopping patterns and needs
« Convened Village officials for a workshop to set downtown priorities
+ Set forth land use, policy, programming, and design recommendations

Over the years, Teska has worked with Western Springs on their Downtown
Redevelopment and Streetscape Plan and TIF Districts that helped spur
new development and improvements. In 2025, Teska continued this work
by preparing a Downtown Market Assessment to analyze current market
realities and inform future economic development strategies tailored to the
community. The assessment noted that while the footprint of downtown

is relatively small, its historic railroad downtown charm, supportive local
customer base, and longstanding businesses set it apart from peers. Steps
for further consideration were identified to guide vibrancy and appropriate
growth, rather than replicate other downtowns.
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FIRM ROLE:
Lead Firm

SERVICES PROVIDED:
Comprehensive Planning
Public Engagement
Subarea/Corridor Planning
Urban Design

KEY PERSONNEL:
Michael Blue, FAICP
Andrew Dunham, AICP

Project completed
in collaboration with
Baxter & Woodman

Lake in the Hills
Comprehensive Plan
LAKE IN THE HILLS, IL

Envisioning high-quality, dynamic, and nature-focused
development grounded in a subarea approach.

PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS:

+ Created four subarea concepts at various scales for development and
redevelopment.

+ Identified opportunities to introduce mixed-use development at
underutilized commercial sites.

+ Outlined community character and economic development strategies
based on existing unique assets, such as natural areas and the airport.

Teska worked with the Village to identify unique community assets

and key challenges. As a relatively new suburb, Lake in the Hills lacks a
traditional downtown area, complicating efforts to establish a community
identity; Teska analyzed public input to identify the unique natural setting
and entrepreneurial spirit of the Village as key building blocks for future
branding and economic development.

The nature-focused identity and business-friendly focus are carried forward
in various subarea plans within the document, which emphasize open space,
natural areas, and business incubation and attraction. These focuses remain
central in all chapters and recommendations in the Comprehensive Plan.
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Services

= Transportation Planning

= Water System Modeling and
Planning

Completed
Latest update, 2022

OODMAN

Consulting Engineers

Water System Model & Five Year Capital Improvement Plan
In 2000, the Village retained Baxter & Woodman to analyze the
Carpentersville water system facilities, develop a WaterCAD water model,

and prepare a Five Year Water System Capital Improvement Plan. The
report made recommendations for distribution system, water production,
water storage, and water treatment improvements. Each recommendation
was accompanied by a preliminary cost estimate, in order to aid the Village
in preparing subsequent annual budgets and future negotiations with
developers on impact fees.

Our team continues to maintain the Village's water model so that the
Village does not incur the expenses of software purchasing, licensing and
upgrades, as well as personnel training. The model has been used to analyze
new subdivisions and improvements to the existing system, and evaluate
the impact of emergency water main shutdowns on the system. Baxter &
Woodman has updated the Village's water and sewer capital plan in 2006,
2014, and 2021, and is scheduled to update again in 2025.

Transportation Capital Improvement Plan

Baxter & Woodman completed the Village's current Transportation Capital
Improvement Plan in 2004 and updated the Plan in 2014. Baxter & Woodman
evaluated the 88 centerline miles of streets maintained by the Village,
created a street inventory database and provided recommended pavement
rehabilitation strategies and estimated costs for each street section (block).
Baxter & Woodman worked with Village staff to prioritize streets for
rehabilitation based on street condition and water main replacement needs
developed in the five year water system model. This information was used to
develop a 10-year Transportation Capital Improvement Plan for water main
replacement and street rehabilitation matching the Village's budget.

2021 Comprehensive Plan Update

The Baxter & Woodman/Teska Associates team was selected in 2021 to
provide professional land use, transportation, parks design, urban design,
and community engagement services in the development of an update to the
Carpentersville Comprehensive Plan.

BAXTERWOODMAN.COM
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The Village board made a decision to pursue a comprehensive Capital

Service Highlights: Infrastructure Plan to provide a complete understanding of the Village's
Infrastructure Risk using focusing on using GIS and Asset Management principles. Key planning
Prioritization Analysis elements include:

«  Evaluation of Roadway
Condition, Streetscape,
Sidewalks
Street Lighting and Fiber
Optic Network Upgrade
Recommendations

= Municipal Properties Analysis

Year:
July 2022 - February 2024

Awards:
APWA 2025 Public Works Project
of the Year, Asset Managment

ACEC 2025 Engineering
Excellence Award, Special
Achievement

Consequence of Failure
1 ‘ 2 ‘ 3
10 Immediate

Replacement/
Rehabilitation

Long-Term
Replacement/

Rehabilitation Short-Term

Replacement/
Rehabilitation

Likelihood of Failure

Reg
Condition Assessment

Infrequent
Monitoring

Risk Matrix

View Western Springs’ Comprehensive
Capital Infrastructure Plan by
scanning the QR code.

BAXTE OODMAN

Consulting Engineers

Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal

Infrastructure Risk Prioritization Analysis: Update missing GIS data
for water/sewer/stormwater system analysis; calculate risk scores for
water, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer systems; and identify the water
mains, sanitary sewers, and storm sewers with the highest risk

Roadway, Streetscape, and Sidewalk Analysis: Update GIS data;
review existing pavement ratings, construction methods, condition of
parking lots and alleys, previous sidewalk studies, and existing studies
for streetscape improvement projects; develop green infrastructure
alternatives; establish an annual program to obtain a target condition
goal; and develop bike connectivity recommendations

Municipal Properties Analysis: Review existing conditions for eight
Village facilities, including providing civil, mechanical, electrical,
plumbing, structural, and architectural reviews

Street Lighting and Fiber Optic Network: Review existing lighting
system; create recommendations for enhancements to the lighting
system; review maintenance costs for existing fiber network; and review
options for expanding the fiber network

Public Engagement: Develop web-based tool and video to inform
public about ongoing updates; create and manage a public survey; and
conduct in-person and virtual open houses.

BLITER S sas S wtiinid 10 gl Dol aitir v il

Comprehensive Capital
Infrastructure Plan

A Halisric Infrastructure Andllysis for Planning Purposes

Eusins Epalaie Oeialeer 38 - Viklage of Weslern Cpring. [Hiasls

BAXTERWOODMAN.COM
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Our Approach

This section describes our team’s approach and proposed work program to
prepare a Comprehensive Plan Update for the Village of Western Springs. As
may be needed, the tasks and workflow can be refined to reflect Village needs
and expectations for the project.

Inspiring Community Engagement

At Teska, engaging the community is not an after-thought or a checkbox; it underpins our entire
approach and planning process. Conducting meaningful outreach with the public from the beginning
to the end is one of the most important ways to ensure that a plan reflects the community and gets
implemented. Having local businesses, residents, elected and appointed officials, and key community
partners involved and feeling ownership over the comprehensive plan, greatly helps advance the goals
formation and Village actions that drive change.

capts Which of the Fc
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Turning Engagement into Qutcomes

BUILD AWARENESS * BUZZ

How do you get the word out about the planning
process, engage the community, and raise awareness?
Creative marketing and project promotion, of course.
Print and digital avenues as well as community events
and interactive installations will come into play to kick-off
Western Springs' comprehensive planning process.

ASK + LEARN

Through stakeholder interviews, polls, virtual and in-
person community events we will focus on specific
topics, questions, needs and opportunities. The findings
of this collective feedback will be merged with data and
research to develop future strategies.

PRIORITIZE + VISUALIZE

With data, future projects, and consensus outlined, the
next step is developing a clear direction with regards to
policies, goals, and recommendations. Project themes,
strategies and priorities are developed for review.

DESIGN * REFINE

Behind every good plan is sound implementation.
Teska works with local leaders, developers, property
owners, and others to prepare near-term projects
and actions to ensure steady progress towards
goals.

p. 34 Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal
Page 150 of 170



04 | APPROACH

Virtual Engagement Hub

Our team uses a community engagement platform called Social Pinpoint. This comprehensive
platform is designed to effortlessly manage high-quality and inclusive engagements, reach more
people, and easily transform input into meaningful, actionable insights. Social Pinpoint offers
dynamic web tools to help present content and collect feedback in an interesting and interactive

format.
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FUND IT SURVEYS

Fund It is a participatory budgeting tool that offer The Survey tool makes it easy to create anything from
feedback on allocation of resources. It can be a a simple web form to a dynamic interactive feedback
powerful way to build consensus, educate the engines.

public about the costs and compromises inherent in

planning. /- G\
b-w Project Website

]

il A W The project website will serve
=1 LIRWA as a virtual engagement hub,
offering project updates,
interactive features, and
resources to keep stakeholders
informed and engaged
throughout the project's
duration. It will facilitate
seamless communication,
collaboration, and feedback,
ensuring that all participants
remain connected and
involved from start to finish.
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Stimulating Economic Development

To create a plan for their future, it is crucial for communities to understand where they are today
and how they got here. A reachable vision is one that is anchored in market realities, incorporates
recent and future trends, and seeks to solidify and strengthen the Village's economic future. The
economic development vision will be built on previous market-focused work in Western Springs
and will serve as the foundation by which the actions, policies, and programs for the Village and
its partners are developed and measured.

The plan update will incorporate a clear understanding of Western Springs’ current market
conditions and form the basis for economic development strategies. Expanding Teska’s existing
understanding of the Village will allow for more detailed analysis and focused recommendations,
creating an effective a more in-depth snapshot of the current market and real estate conditions in
the community. On-the-ground experiences of local priorities, business owner sentiment, resident
wants and needs, and market realities will inform a holistic approach to market research.

A well-defined set of development strategies will position Western Springs to achieve its
economic development vision. The implementation plan will identify business development
strategies, housing needs, district-specific opportunities, and will be consistent with the land
use recommendations. The implementation plan will describe the path to drive economic
development in a manner that does not detract from the traits that make Western Springs a
lovable and livable community.

TESKA METHODOLOGY AT A GLANCE

@ Grounded in Data

Teska fuses validated market
economics with site layout

and fiscal modeling — not just
analysis, but implementation-
ready concepts.
(/) Quantitative + Qualitative
Storefront audits, broker
intervi : Sound

interviews, and community

engagement ground our analytics E con Oml CS

in real conditions leveraging local
assets.

@ Fiscal Sustainability Strategy Q
We model short and long-

term impacts — municipal Built for Action

revenues, school district costs,

infrastructure needs — ensuring

investment delivers lasting value.
@ Character + Commerce

We align fiscal performance with

fpe

\

authentic place identity, because I
sustainable development requires ‘. .
both ROI and projects that Q

support community values.
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MOODY’S £

SUCCESS METHODOLOGY

Our Integrated Process From Analysis to Action

@ esri g

/m_

e

ANALYZE

Fusing market data with real-world insights.

Integrated Data Stack: We integrate Moody’s Commercial Real
Estate (CRE), Esri Business Analyst and MRI-Simmons, with our
proprietary database of comparable projects in neighboring
communities to tailor solutions.

Strategic Benchmarking: In-depth trade area and peer
community comparisons precisely identify local market strengths,
competitive advantages, and actionable gaps.

Fiscal Reality Checks: Metrics align public investment with ROI.
Developer + Broker Interviews: Pinpoint deal friction.
Site/Space Audits: Document conditions and leasing quality.
Resident/Business Surveys: Quantify spending, unmet demand.

=

- RESULT: Integrated,

validated, and trustworthy
data that is spatial,
specific, and reflects the
lived economy.

PLAN
Report findings that take shape on the ground.

Sub-Area Planning: Translate market potential into phased
development concepts.

Fiscal Impact Studies: Project revenue, costs, and growth for
municipalities and other local governments.

Zoning + Policy Alignment: Update codes and incentive
programs to unlock realistic projects.

Brand Identity: Tie strategy to authentic character via visuals
and placemaking.

- RESULT: A complete market

strategy with fiscal models,
design concepts, tools and
tailored solutions to attract
development and tenants
that thrive.

ACT

From policy decisions to built projects.

District & Incentive Structuring: Lead TIF, SSA, and BID creation
plus incentive packaging.

Developer Recruitment: Draft solicitations, brief developers, and
identify site-specific solutions

Action Trackers + Metrics: Living dashboards that monitor
progress and support accountability.

Ongoing Advisor: We stay engaged to support recruitment, adjust

strategies, and navigate implementation challenges.

- RESULT: An economic

plan -- backed by a
comprehensive suite of
implementation tools

and partnerships -- that
performs not just informs.

Moody’s is validated by a dedicated team of experts, to provide predictive analytics, trusted
insights, and data on hundreds of thousands of projects — from rent to vacancy to cap rates.

Teska harnesses this data to tailor solutions for site specific areas and compare local market

strengths with surrounding communities.
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We understand that Western Springs residents have a special connection to their community (and for
good reason). Preserving this intrinsic character is a major consideration in all aspects of the planning
process. Teska's experience within the Village provides important context of the aspects of the
community that residents value; this understanding will be supplemented and expanded upon through
in-person and virtual engagement. Community character elements will be carried forward in design
guidelines, gateways, and urban design recommendations.

Providing Community-tailored Housing Solutions

As a community comprised primarily of single-family homes, Western Springs’ urban form is emblematic
of its character and context within the region. However, changing consumer preferences, market trends,
and demographics (regionally and nationally) have increased demand for diverse housing types, as
exemplified by the 5600 Wolf Road townhome community proposal. Teska is experienced in tailoring
housing recommendations to fit the character of mature, historic communities, and housing stock and
demand will be central components of the market assessment portion of phase one of the planning
process. This approach will allow for holistic, realistic, and market-driven housing strategies, policies, and
recommendations.

Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal
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Expanding Transportation Options

Western Springs’ history as a railroad community has created an advantageous urban form that provides
walkability to residents and transit connectivity to the region. The construction of the Tri-State Tollway
in the late 1950s provided an additional layer of regional connectivity for automobiles. Ensuring a safe,
connected transportation network within the Village involves a holistic approach to transportation with
adequate consideration for people, automobiles, bicycles, and transit riders.

Baxter & Woodman, who will support Teska in the multimodal analysis and planning portion of the
comprehensive plan, has extensive experience in transportation planning across the region and has
completed several engineering projects for the Village of Western Springs. As part of this effort, Teska
and Baxter & Woodman will approach transportation planning in a manner that supports land use,
economic development, and sustainability goals.

Land Use & Development

Teska is experienced with land use planning in mature communities. Our approach is always focused on
finding the right balance between accommodating opportunities for economic development while also
retaining existing neighborhoods and preserving the aspects of Western Springs that attracted current
residents and businesses in the first place. Future land use planning is informed by Teska's understand of
community expectations, community engagement, and best planning practices for quality development.
We will build a land use strategy based on the community’s priorities and establish criteria that can be
used for decision-making: for example, defining questions that must be answered affirmatively in order
to allow certain uses and scales in key areas.

Implementation-Focused

The course for a community to follow in reaching its goal must be more than a “to do” list chart at

the end of a plan. Teska staff have a depth of experience working for and with municipalities and we
understand that successful implementation is a balance between numerous interests, projects, budget
capacity, and essential services. Implementation tasks will be focused on accomplishing defined
outcomes, within the bounds of the local and regional real estate markets and the capacity of the
community.
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Scope of Work

Phases at ] 2 3

d Glance Kick-off & Existing Public

Conditions Engagement &
Visioning

Draft Plan

Phase I: Kick-off & Existing Conditions
Duration: Four months

An implementable, effective, and tailored comprehensive plan requires a sound foundation of data, input,
and community priorities. Phase 1 of the Western Springs Comprehensive Plan will focus on expanding
the team’s present experience in and knowledge of the Village. Teska's previous work within the Village will
allow for cost savings and efficiencies during this process, affording the planning team an opportunity to
dig deeper into the data and better focus discussions with stakeholders and committees.

This will establish an updated understanding of Western Springs and acquire information to develop the
plan. This includes information related to land uses, real estate markets, development and transportation
trends, infrastructure capacity, Village policies from past plans, etc. It will also include a reasonable
projection of community needs over the implementation period of the plan to ensure Western Springs is
planning realistically for its future.

Task 1.1: Kick-off Meeting with Staff

Conduct project kickoff and community tour. Establish protocols for meetings and communications.
Assist in Steering Committee selection. Discuss preferred engagement strategies, current challenges and
opportunities, data expectations and needs, scheduling, project management.

Task 1.2: Kick-off meeting with Steering Committee

Facilitate a meeting with Comprehensive Plan Steering Committee to review scope of services and the
comprehensive plan update objectives. The primary purpose of the meeting will be to workshop with the
group about the Village's past, present, and future, seeking initial input from the Committee to inform
subsequent plan steps.

Task 1.3: Public Engagement Plan

Customize a public engagement program to Western Springs that outlines communications and outreach
activities, timing, events, and individuals/groups to involve throughout the process. The plan will be
reviewed and refined with Village staff.

p. 40 Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal
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Task 1.4: Existing Conditions Report

Prepare presentation summary of team’s analysis of existing conditions with key findings and questions to
answer in the plan update. Draft shared with Village staff and revised as needed. Topics to be included:

- Existing Village plans: Review existing studies, and ordinances.

- Demographics and market data: Evaluate Census, Esri Business Analyst, and Moody's Commercial
Real Estate data to identify demographic and market trends. See Task 1.5: Market Assessment for
additional information on market components.

« Environment & Sustainability: Collect existing natural resources and features, tree canopy
coverage, flood susceptibility, and inventory of existing Village sustainability programs.

« Housing: Assess the age, structural, value and occupancy characteristics of existing housing stock,
within the Village's distinct neighborhoods.

+ Land Use & Community Design: Compile existing land use, vacant land and opportunity sites,
existing development regulations, physical conditions using Nearmap aerial imagery to understand
neighborhood design, building and siting characteristics, off-street parking areas, and commercial
districts. Institutional sights will be inventoried.

« Open Space: Review environmental, community facilities, and open space information, review of
Park District facilities and plans.

« Transportation: Consider transit ridership and regional plans, roadway performance, bike/
pedestrian access conditions, crash records from IDOT and results of the Village's newly approved
Comprehensive Capital improvement Plan.

Task 1.5: Market Assessment

Build on existing quantitative and qualitative findings from the Downtown Market Assessment and refresh
data related to commercial, residential, and office market data (trends, age distribution, educational
levels, income levels, employment characteristics, major employers, retail and office market trends,
competitive commercial districts, analysis of retail spending power to attract investment). Develop
understanding of Village wide and business district market potentials and types of businesses most
appropriate for those areas, based on data evaluation.

Building on Market Knowledge

Teska understands that a market
assessment is more than just charts
and tables, but it is a process that
involves both quanitative data and
qualitative sentiments. As part of
the market assessment for Western
Springs’ downtown, Teska analyzed
parking regulations in and around the
Village's central district to determine
its role in supporting downtown
businesses (pictured at right). This
holistic approach to markets and
development will be the standard for

l Parking restricted during
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Task 1.6: Steering Committee Meeting #2

Present Existing Conditions Report to Steering Committee and solicit feedback for revisions prior to
posting to website for public comment. Report includes preliminary goals, objective, and vision statement
to focus plan making tasks. Facilitate interactive activity to develop community vision.

Task 1.7:Village Board Update

Present findings of data analysis and initial public engagement to Village Board and receive their
feedback. Other Village boards and commissions are invited to participate.

Phase 1 Deliverables

Public Engagement Plan

Steering Committee 1 & 2 Materials
Existing Conditions Report

Market Assessment

Existing Conditions Data Visualization

Our team will develop
clear, accessible maps
and graphics to illustrate
complex findings from
the existing conditions
analysis. These easy-
to-digest visuals will
spark conversation,
deepen understanding,
and ensure that plan
recommendations for
Western Springs are not
only data-driven, but
also transparent and
approachable for all who
engage with the planning
process.

Pictured at right:
selections from Lake Zurich
Comprehensive Plan’s
Community Conditions
Report
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the various Character Districts and how they
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Phase 2: Public Engagement & Visioning
Duration: Four months (Visioning), Twelve months (ongoing community engagement)

Though engagement is the second phase of the proposed scope, all of Teska's plans incorporate
engagement opportunities at every stage from the project kick-off to the final adoption. Initial
engagement activities (visioning) will be focused on developing a consensus-based Village-wide vision
based on community values and aspirations, the quintessential traits of Western Springs, and the bounds
of practical development and market feasibility. This vision will serve as a north star to guide future
planning, design, and policy recommendations.

Documents throughout the process, such as the Existing Conditions Report, Preliminary
Recommendations, and Draft Plans, will serve as project milestones, allowing the public to follow the
process and providing transparency. Community input will be solicited at each milestones in various
forms, including open houses, an online survey, and the other in-person and online forms of engagement.
A plan website will be maintained throughout the process as a “one-stop shop” for residents to

learn about the process, share ideas 24/7 on a comment map and/or ideas wall, and stay updated by
subscribing to the website. Maintaining these ongoing lines of communication will ensure community
voices are heard, helping build community ownership of the process and the ultimate plan.

Task 2.1: Project Branding

Develop unique project brand to identify the plan and process. Print project postcards for distribution
across the Village to spread the word about the planning process.

Task 2.2: Stakeholder Interviews

Work with Village officials to identify a broad cross-section of stakeholders consisting of Village
residents, businesspeople, leaders, and partner governmental institutions and agencies. Schedule and
conduct group interviews with participants based around their relationship to the Village.

Task 2.3: Project Website

Create project website that incorporates the project brand. The project website will include key
engagement tools, including a comment map and ideas wall. The website will include pages for frequently
asked questions and background information, relevant planning documents and interim files throughout
the process, and a "News" page that will be regularly updated as project milestones are reached or as
engagement opportunities are announced.

Interactive Visioning \

As part of the custom-built and branded project website,
Teska will embed interactive, user-friendly tools to collect
+,} meaningful input on topic areas, sub-areas and place-
4| based information.
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Task 2.4: Pop-up

Coordinate with Village to operate a pop-up table at a community event (such as the French Market) to
spread the word about the plan and solicit initial feedback to guide the community vision.

Task 2.5: Community Open House & Workshop

Schedule and promote an interactive, accessible in-person open house. Present Phase 1 findings
(including feedback and data) to develop a community vision. Held early in planning process, input will
inform development of a plan vision for the future.

As part of the open house, we also propose a “village building” activity targeting the Wolf Road/55th
Street and Gilberts/Willow Springs subarea (downtown opportunity sites can also be included, should the
Village desire), allowing residents to place desired land uses on basemaps in an engaging, real-life version
of the game Sim City. See project example below for more information.

Task 2.6: Draft Plan Open House

Schedule and promote a second interactive open house (at the end of Phase 3) focused on major
preliminary recommendations in the draft plan. Solicit community feedback on the appropriateness of
central recommendations and preliminary subarea concept plans.

Phase 2 Deliverables

Project Postcards

Pop-up Materials

Stakeholder Interview Summary
Project Website

Open House Materials

Democratizing Development Concepts

As part of our community engagement effort, we will coordinate a “village building” workshop as part of
the first community open house. This engaging and interactive activity allows for focused discussion of
community land use and development preferences with scale model building blocks. Such an activity may
be held on-site at the Garden Market shopping center or other community facility.

p. 44 Western Springs Comprehensive Plan Proposal
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Phase 3: Draft Plan

Duration: Five months

Building on findings of data analysis and community visioning process, Phase 3 transforms the community
vision into recommended actions through development of as integrated planning framework. Work in

this phase will identify redevelopment, housing, and economic development opportunities, suggest how
to strengthen Western Springs’ distinct identity with design, offer placemaking strategies, and shape a
multimodal mobility network. Draft development concepts will be created for subareas identified in the
RFP based on economic development potential and alignment with local priorities and markets. Through a
series of collaborative work sessions with Village officials, meeting with the Steering Committee, and an
engaging community workshop, ideas will be presented and refined into a draft plan.

Task 3.1: Land Use and Subarea Strategies

Prepare Village-wide and district-specific draft land use recommendations and implementation strategies.
District recommendations will focus on the Downtown, Gilbert/Willow Springs and Wolf Road/55th Street
subareas. Planning and development criteria for potential infill sites will be developed.

Task 3.2: Economic Development and Housing Strategies

Prepare a series of economic development strategies based on the community vision, real estate market
trends and indicators, and community expectations. Special attention will be paid to the enhancement of
the downtown area, commercial nodes, and potential redevelopment opportunities at institutional sites.
Strategies to achieve Village housing goals, infill development, housing affordability, and diversity of
housing stock will be established.

Advancing Plan Goals Through Site-Specific Recommendations

Teska led development

of the Des Plaines
Downtown Development
Strategy, which focused

on developing policies,
development and design
parameters, and prioritizing
financial incentives to spark
the reinvestment of key
opportunity sites.

.
Install indoor/outdoor.
flexible space

AN ——
Enhance appearance of

ground-level retail

\

The Downtown @®

Deyglqpment Strategy S—

prioritized retaining and . completed
R . Approved/

attracting local businesses i in-progress

o o a (0] tunit
while fostering mixed- e

use development that
fit the character of the
community.

Pictured at right: Downtown
Des Plaines Development
Strategy
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Task 3.3: Community Character Strategies

Develop initial strategies for the continued enhancement of Western Springs’ distinct character, including
residential areas, gateways, business districts and open space. Task will also provide recommendations for
design guidelines related to multi-family development, residential planned developments, and downtown
commercial redevelopment aimed to reinforce the look and feel of the community that has been
cultivated over its 150-year history.

Task 3.4: Multimodal Transportation Strategies

Identify key locations in the Village to improve multimodal transportation access and connectivity. Policies
and treatments to facilitate a safe transportation network for all ages and abilities will be created as part
of this task.

Task 3.5: Environmental and Sustainability Strategies

Analyze efficacy of existing Village sustainability efforts and policies and set forth preliminary
recommendations to prioritize existing policies and recommend others.

Task 3.6: Draft Recommendations Report

Prepare a draft recommendation report outlining key plan strategies outlined in tasks 3.1-3.5.
Recommendations will be workshopped with Village staff prior to being reviewed with the Steering
Committee and at the second community open house.

Task 3.7: Steering Committee Meeting #3

Present Draft Recommendations Report to Steering Committee and conduct interactive consensus-
building activity.

Task 3.8: Village Board Update

Present Draft Recommendation to Village Board and receive their feedback. Other Village boards and
commissions invited to participate.

Phase 3 Deliverables

Draft Recommendations Report

Steering Committee Meeting 3 Materials
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Duration: Two months

Feedback from the Steering Committee and Second Open House will be incorporated into a final,
formatted plan document for the Village. This document will be reviewed by staff and the Steering
Committee before being presented to the community for their review and comment. The plan document
will then be presented to the Plan Commission at a public hearing for recommendation to the Village
Board for adoption.

Compile all findings and recommendations in to a formatted, accessible, and graphically-engaging plan
document. Draft will be provided for staff review prior to being reviewed with the Steering Committee.

Present key plan contents and discuss refinement ahead of public hearing.

Present revised plan (incorporating staff, Steering Committee, and public feedback) to Plan Commission
for recommendation to Village Board. (Consultant will be available for two meetings)

Present final plan to the Village Board of Trustees for adoption.

Provide final plan as electronic document (PDF and Word formats) to Village, as well as all relevant data
and interim documents.

Tasked with a creating an engaging,
interactive, and user-friendly plan, Teska
developed an online plan in tandem with
a traditional print plan for Glencoe. This
online format also allows for flexibility in
. promoting key aspects of the plan and
Electronic Plan Document implementation efforts. Click here to view
the online plan or scan the QR code below.

Develop and host onling, interactive version of the plan.

Relevant Plan Data and Documents

Steering Committee #4 Materials
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Project Timeline

We propose a 12-month timeline to complete the scope of work. Our approach
is structured for steady progress, with regular bi-monthly check-ins with staff
to ensure transparency, track milestones, and adjust as needed. The timeline is
flexible and can be refined in collaboration with the Village, as desired.

2026 2026-27
FEB-MAR APR-MAY JUN-JUL AUG-SEP OCT-NOV DEC-JAN
; Existing
; ﬁg{)ec;:tement lan Conditions
1. Kick-off & ot st% i ck—%ff Presentation (SC
Existing meeting Meeting #2)
Conditions e
) arke
SC Kick-Off Assessment
Launch project ' Ongoing Ongoing
2. Public ziﬁzﬁg'l der Village Board ﬁggg‘én%ggﬁg outreach, website | Community outreach, website
Engagement P Update #1 #1 P updates and Open House #2 | updates and
» pop-up communications communications
event
Vision Development
Preliminary Draft Plan
3. Draft Plan Draft Recommendations
recommendations | Workshop with SC Meeting #3:
and subarea Staff Draft Plan
concepts
Plan Document
SC Meeting #4:
Plan Refinement
Plan Commission
Public Hearing
meeting(s)
Village Board
Adoption
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Project Cost

Our team proposes to prepare the Western Springs Comprehensive Plan for a
not to exceed fee of $100,000, inclusive of all work and expenses. A proposed
optional scope task to create and host an online plan is available for an additional
cost of $7,500-%$10,000

HOURLY PHASE1 PHASE2 PHASE3 PHASE 4 TOTAL

PERSONNEL RATE  HOURS HOURS HOURS HOURS  HOURS
TESKA

Michael Blue, Project Manager $180 20 20 40 25 105
Jodi Mariano, Design Lead $180 - - 12 6 18
Andrew Dunham, Planning Lead $130 60 76 100 50 286
reaNchOstmm SOOI s e - s - @
Emma Swanson, Project Planner $130 12 50 40 20 122
Scot'f Qoldstein, Economic Development $180 4 ) 8 4 16
Specialist

Danny O’Brian, Land Planner $160 - - 12 6 18
BAXTER & WOODMAN

Jonathan B. Trent, Project Manager $245 9 - 16 4 29
Jackson Marvel, GIS/Urban Planner $150 14 - 4 8 26

TOTAL HOURS BY PHASE 652

TOTAL COST BY PHASE (including
additional expenses)

$21,015 $21,400 $38,840 $18,745 $100,000

ADDITIONAL EXPENSES BY PHASE PHASE1 PHASE2 PHASE3 PHASE4 TOTAL

Additional Expenses: $330 $1,800 $500 $455 $1,465

TOTAL PROJECT COST: $100,000

Optional Task: Interactive Online Plan
($7,500-$10,000)
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Project Examples

Click on the below graphics to view completed past plans.

E.% HILLS
IMPREHENSIVE PLAY

\DOPTED JUNE 12, 2025
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Beyond the Print Plan

Utilizing the Village’s existing StoryMaps interface as a hosting service, we
propose an optional task of an online plan document.

In addition to the final, fully formatted version of the comprehensive plan document, the Village may
wish to consider also having a web-based version. Teska can, as an optional task, translate a condensed
version of comprehensive plan into a web-based deliverable via ArcGIS StoryMaps.

This would allow for easy navigation across summarized plan chapters, hyperlinks to other online
resources, interactive maps that can be zoomed in and out, image embeds, greater accessibility via
online translating or screen readers, and easier updates by Village staff. Furthermore, the Village is
already an ArcGIS Online/StoryMaps user, with several planning and community development resources
available to the public in this format.

Ultimately, a version of the plan that functions as a website can be more approachable and user-friendly
than a lengthy PDF or print document (this option would include an editable summary text and PDF
document to keep on file). See the All In, Glencoe Comprehensive Plan example on the previous page
or scan the below QR code.

Marion Ave

4 B

Laka-Cook Rd

Harthbreak 'r.'n.h
Cour [
Laks Shoms
Cauntry Cluk

=
Y
a

Village Squate
Morthbrook

Lea Ed

Marsiscn Ln A L%
3, Glendos ql‘.’r‘
s Golf Chub ; e

linois is a well-laved

Click here to view the All In, Glencoe
online plan or scan the QR code below.

ammunity on Chicago's b
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Michael Blue, FAICP

Vice President of Planning - Teska
mblue@teskaassociates.com
(847) 563-9722 direct

Teska Associates, Inc.
Building Community, Creating Place
www. TeskaAssociates.com
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